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LEINER PAK GELATINE LIMITED.

. DON’T ONLY ASK FOR GELATINE !
INSIST ON “HALAL?”
GELATINE AND ITS PRODUCTS

NOTICE OF 39™ ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING

Notice is hereby given that the 39" Annual General Meeting of LEINER PAK GELATINE
LTD., will be held on Friday, the 28" October, 2022 at 10.00 A.M. at the Registered office
of the Company, 17/G, Gulberg-2, Lahore-54660 to transact the following business :

1. Recitation from the Holy Quran.

2. To confirm the minutes of the Extra Ordinary General Meeting held on Tuesday,
18" January, 2022.

3. To receive and adopt the Annual Accounts of the Company for the Year ended 30t
June, 2022 together with Directors’ and Auditors’ Report thereon.

4. To appoint the Auditors of the Company for the year ending 30™ June, 2023 and to
fix their remuneration.
Ordinary Business

5. To transact or discuss any other business with the permission of the Chair.
BY ORDER OF THE BOARD,

(IBRAR AHMED KHWAJA),
LAHORE: COMPANY SECRETARY.
DATED: 07" October, 2022.
NOTES:

1. The Share Transfer Books of the Company will remain closed from 22" October,
2022 to 28™ October, 2022 (both days inclusive). Shares may be lodged for transfer
with our Registrar M/s CORPLINK (PVT) LTD., Wings Arcade, 1-K, Commercial,
Model Town, Lahore. Phone Nos: 042-35839182, 35887262, 35916719 Fax No:
042-35869037.

2. The Shareholders are advised to notify the Registrar of any change in their address.

3. A member entitled to attend and vote at this meeting may appoint another member
as proxy to attend and vote instead of him. The Proxy Form duly signed and
stamped must be received at the Registered Office of the Company not less than 48
hours before the time of holding the meeting.

4. Any individual beneficial owner of the share in the Central Depository Company
(CDC) entitled to vote at this meeting with him/her to prove him/her identity together
with his/her Account number in CDC and in case of proxy, must enclose an attested
copy of his/her CNIC. Representative of Corporate Members should bring the usual
documents required for such purpose.

5. Pursuant to the directive of the Securities and Exchange Commission of Pakistan
(SECP), CNIC numbers of shareholders are mandatory required on dividend
warrants. Shareholders are therefore requested to submit a copy of their CNIC (if
not already provided) to the Shares Registrar. In case of non-receipt of the copy of
a valid CNIC, the company would be unable to comply with SRO 831(1)/2012 dated
July 05, 2012 of SECP and therefore will be constrained under SECP order dated
July 13, 2015 to withhold the dispatch of dividend warrants of such shareholders.
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6. Shareholders, who by any reason, could not claim their dividend or bonus shares or
did not collect their physical shares, are advised to contact our Share Registrar M/s
Corplink (Pvt) Limited to collect / enquire about their unclaimed dividend or pending
shares, if any.

7. Pursuant to Notification vide SRO.787(1)/2014 of September 08, 2014, SECP has
directed to facilitate the members of the company receiving Annual Financial
Statements and Notices through electronic mail system (e-mail). We are pleased to
offer this facility to our members who desire to receive Annual Financial Statements
and Notices of the Company through e-mail in future. In this respect members are
hereby requested to convey their consent via e-mail on a standard request form
which is available at the Company website i.e. www.leinerpakgelatine.com.

8. As per section 72 of the Companies Act, 2017 every existing listed company shall
be required to replace its physical shares with book-entry form in a manner as may
be specified and from the date notified by the SECP. The shareholders having
physical shareholding are therefore requested to open CDC sub-account with any of
the brokers or investor account directly with CDC to place their physical shares into
scrip less form.

9. Members can also avail video conference facility, in this regard, please fill the
following and submit to registered address of the Company 10 days before holding
of the Annual General Meeting. If the Company received consent from members
holding in aggregate 10% or more shareholding residing at a geographical location,
to participate in the meeting through video conference at least 10 days prior date of
the meeting, the Company will arrange video conference facility in the city subject to
availability of such facility in that city.

“I/We, of , being a
member of Leiner Pak Gelatine limited, holder of ordinary Share(s)
as per Registered Folio No. hereby opt for video conference facility at
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VISION STATEMENT

Continue to lead the domestic industry in Gelatine manufacturing with technology and
quality of the product along with persistent recognition in international market in the line
of code of conduct and best practices of corporate governance.

MISSION

The mission of the management of the company is to focus on the vision and its
accomplishment by:

» Adoption of advanced technologies in Gelatine manufacturing.

» Investment in human resources to create and strengthen professional
environment.

» Developing company’s code of conduct and pursuance of best practices of
corporate governance.

» Exploring new international markets with the satisfaction of existing customers.

» Continuous improvement of quality system, environmental management system
from 1SO-9001:2000, ISO 14000 (already obtained) to other achievements of
quality management.

» Fetching and delivering healthy returns to all stakeholders.

» Contribution towards economic and social uplift of employees and community in
general.
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CORPORATE STRATEGY

OBJECTIVES

Our corporate strategy is very much in line with vision and mission statement. Strategic
objectives are covering the following areas.

e Sustainable growth.

e Promotion for efficient use of energy.

e Innovation in product line.

e Customer satisfaction.

e Adherence to the code of conduct.

e Safeguard the share holders interest.

e Continuous improvement of human capital.

STRATEGIC PLANNING

It is planned to innovate the product line with scheduled R&D activities. Energy Conservation
through calibration, expert advises and induction of efficient machinery and replacing the old
production line which shall lead to sustainable growth. Well equipped quality assurance
department is maintained to achieve consistency in quality of the products. Optimal
utilization of Company resources to achieve the economy level. Investment in human capital
by participating in workshops, conferences, and different technical courses offered by
reputed institutions. Formulation of Code of Conduct for better governance and to bring
corporate culture in Company.
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CHAIRMAN’S REVIEW

On behalf of the Board of Directors, | am pleased to present the company’s 39" Annual
Report.

During this fiscal year 2022, Pakistan economy showed mixed performance. In 2" half
of the fiscal year economic condition of Pakistan remained unstable and it posed so
many challenges to the manufacturing entities. Rising fuel and commodity prices over
shadowed post COVID recovery and increased trade deficit. Foreign exchange reserves
also remained under pressure which resulted in the depreciation of the Pak Rupee.

In this financial year, company’s top line is registered at Rs.1,012.39 million as
compared to Rs. 941.51 million last year. Management decision to enhance exports
share in total sales revenue amid devaluations of Pak Rupee proved to be beneficial for
the company. Persistent increase in electricity and gas tariff and increase in raw
material prices marginally raised cost of production of our products. Our export
remittances in Pak Rupee helped to fizzle out these effects to certain extent and

company achieved profit before tax at Rs. 21.12 million.

Company policies and procedures have been framed and implemented to ensure
compliance with applicable laws, regulations and best practices including Code of
Corporate Governance Regulations, 2019. The Board and its committees (Audit
Committee and Human Resources and Remuneration Committee) are functioning
according to guidelines of Code of Corporate Governance. Board is having two
independent and one female director in total seven directors. Board met six times during

the year.

Company has placed a system of evaluation of Directors in accordance with provisions
of Code of Corporate Governance. This evaluation is made on annually basis. Company
has also adopted a well defined CSR policy with a special emphasis on education and
health of the communities.

Board of Directors recognizes the contribution of company employees to the success of
your company.

LAHORE. AHMED ALI RIAZ
Dated: October 07, 2022. Chairman
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DIRECTORS’ REPORT

The Directors are pleased to present the 39" Annual Report along with company’s financial
statements for the year ended 30™ June, 2022 together with Auditors’ Report thereon.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITY

Leiner Pak Gelatine Limited is involved in manufacturing “Halal” Gelatine and Di-calcium
Phosphate (by product).

OPERATIONS

During this year Pakistan economy demonstrated boom and bust. Impressive GDP growth rate
was over shadowed by fiscal and current account deficit. Geo political situation, high
international fuel and commodity prices and significant depreciation of Pak Rupee further
increased trade deficit. These factors have been translated in to year — on — year inflation.

The company recorded growth of 7.5% in its sales for the year despite increasingly difficult
economic conditions and competitive pressures. Company's top line is registered at
Rs.1,012.39 as compared to Rs. 941.51 million last year. Company’s strategic resolve to make
shift from local market to export market really worked out and exports of this year remained at
Rs.455.21million which contributed in achieving ever highest sales revenue.

Incessant increase in electricity and gas tariff coupled with rise in prices of raw material
(crushed bone) and other allied production related materials / chemicals affected the production
process and company could not achieve its optimal production level.

Export proceed realizations of U.S. Dollars in Pak rupees amid significant devaluation of local
currency provided certain compensation against up surged cost of production and profit before
tax arrived at Rs.21.12 million as compared to profit before tax Rs. 18.25 million last year.

Continuous profitability of last few years has eased operational capabilities but company is still
exposed to certain digressions. The company has negative cash flow from operating activities
during the year ended June 30, 2022 and company’'s current liabilities exceeded its current
assets by Rs.7.299 million. These events or conditions indicate that a material uncertainty exists
that may cast significant doubt on the company’s ability to continue as going concern and,
therefore, the company may be unable to realize its assets and discharge its liabilities in the
normal course of business.

This year company’s gross profit margin reflected a growth from 11.14% to 14.32% due to
increase in sales revenue and company achieved profit after tax at Rs.8.28 million as compared
to previous year profit after of tax Rs.5.004 million. Marginal increase in top line and continuous
profitability for the last many years is improving financial health of the company. Keeping in view
the following factors, the management foresees that the company will continue as going
concern: -
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e There is continued demand for the products of the Company. Demand of “Halal’
Gelatine exists in foreign and local markets as “Halal” Gelatine is equally consumed in
Muslim and Non-Muslim countries.

e 'There is continued financial support of the Company’s sponsors. The sponsor's of the
Company have inducted up to June 30, 2022 Rupees 54.828 million (June 30, 2021:
Rupees 111.166 million) interest free loans and a new sponsor's loan Rupees 82.5
million. They are also committed to induct further funds, if the need arises, to address
any liquidity issues for smooth operations; and

e The existence of new sales orders (local as well as exports) along with advance
payments received there against.

These financial statements have, therefore, been prepared using going concern basis of
accounting and, accordingly, do not include any adjustments relating to realization of its assets
and the liquidation of any liabilities that might be necessary should the Company be unable to
continue as a going concern.

The auditors’ report contains emphasis of matter paragraph to draw attention towards the going
concern matter. In this regard management’s assessment is detailed in note 2 in the annexed
financial statements.

CORPORATE AND FINANCIAL REPORTING FRAME WOK

Company is fully compliant with the Code of Corporate Governance and Corporate and
Financial Reporting framework of the Securities &Exchange Commission of Pakistan (SECP).
Board is pleased to place following statement on record:

1. The financial statements prepared by the management of the company present fairly its
state of the affairs, the results of its operations, cash flows and changes in equity.

2. Proper books of accounts have been maintained.

3. Appropriate accounting policies have been consistently applied in preparation of
financial statements. The accounting estimates wherever required are based on
reasonable and prudent judgment.

4. IFRS and International Accounting Standards as applicable in Pakistan have been
followed in preparation of financial statements.

5. The system of internal control is sound in design and has been effectively implemented
and monitored.

6. The management has explained their review in detail regarding going concern ability of
the company in note 2 to the annexed financial statements.

7. There has been no material departure from the best practices of corporate governance,
as detailed in listing regulations.

8. Outstanding taxes, duties and charges have been disclosed in the financial statements.
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KEY OPERATING AND FINANCIAL DATA OF LAST SIX YEARS
Years ending on June: 2021 2020 2019 2018 2017 2016
Rupees | Rupees | Rupees | Rupees | Rupees | Rupees
(000s) (000s) | (0O00s) | (0O0O0s) | (000s) | (00O0s)
Turnover 941,515 | 660,888 | 779,659 | 752,297 | 692,372 | 727,664
Profit/(Loss) after Taxation 5,004 1,928 2,537 | (3,956) | (3,009) 2,748
Assets 1,145,211 | 994,892 | 860,191 | 715,769 | 661,874 | 652,850
Dividend - - - -
Non-current Liabilities 23,378 13,423 864 1,043 504 856

ADEQUACY OF INTERNAL CONTROL

Internal control system of the company is properly designed keeping in view the nature of
business and materiality of the transactions involved. Internal control system is periodically
reviewed by the audit committee and improvements in the system are made keeping in view
recommendations of internal audit department.

STATEMENT OF VALUE ADDITION AND ITS DISTRIBUTION

The “Statement of Value Addition and its Distribution is annexed to the report.

DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION

Remuneration of the Board of Directors is approved by the Board. Non-executive Directors and
independent Directors are entitled for fee for attending the meetings. Remuneration of Directors
and Chief Executive Officer are disclosed in Note No. 42 to the financial statements for the

year ended June 30, 2022.

DIRECTORS OF THE COMPANY

During the year following Directors served on the Board of the company.

Sr. No. Name of Directors
1. Ahmed Ali Riaz
2. Khwajalmtiaz Ahmed
- 3 ljaz Ahmed Khwaja
4, Ibrar Ahmed Khwaja
5. Ayesha Ahmed
6.

Rashid Minhas (independent)

10

Number of Meetings

6
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7. Syed Rizwan Haider (independent) 3
8. Mian Zia-Ud-Din *  (independent) 3

* Retired on Completion of his terms as independent director on January 18, 2022

APPROPRIATIONS

In view of the low profitability and to ease business operations, it has been decided to omit the
dividend for the current year.

EARNING RATIO:

The earning per share after tax works out to Rs. 1.10{last year Rs.0.67 }.

PROVIDENT FUND

The company operates an approved contributory provident fund covering all permanent
employees. The value of the fund at the year ended 30" June, 2022 is Rs.165.582 million. The
investment values of the respective fund is as follows:

Provident Fund

Last audited statements June 30, 2022
Investments at fair value Rs.(000s) 98,748

These funds are invested as given below:

Rs.(000s)

Unit Trust Schemes 44 700
Mutual Funds 1,664
Savings Schemes of Banks 3,285
Bank Deposits 27,522
Listed Securities 21,577
98,748

CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY (CSR)

11
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Corporate social responsibility or CSR, refers to the belief that businesses have an obligation to
society beyond their commitments to their shareholders or investors. Company is committed to

support the community and making donations to hospitals and educational sector.

OUT STANDING STATUTORY PAYMENTS

All outstanding payments are of routine nature.

CODE OF CONDUCT

Company has developed and adopted a comprehensive Code of conduct in accordance with
Code of Corporate Governance Regulations 2019. This code of conduct prescribes rules and
regulations to be followed by every employee of the company. Board has also adopted controls
for timely identification and redressal of unethical practices performed on the part of employees.
Code of conduct is fully disseminated throughout the company.

BOARD COMMITTEES

AUDIT COMMITTEE

Company has formulated Audit Committee in accordance with code of corporate governance.
This committee is headed by an independent Director. Names of Audit Committee members are
given below:

Name of Directors

Rashid Minhas (Chairman)
ljaz Ahmed Khwaja (Member)
Ahmed Ali Riaz (Member)

Audit Committee provides assistance to the Board of Directors in discharging their
responsibilities in accordance with provisions of code of corporate governance and financial
reporting framework. This committee is also entrusted to implement an effective internal control
system and forward recommendations to the Board of Directors for further improve of the
systems.

Audit Committee’s other responsibilities in the light of code of corporate governance also
include the following:

1. Determination of appropriate measures to safeguard the company’s assets;
2. Review of annual and interim financial statements of the company, prior to their approval
by the board, focusing on;
a) maijor judgmental areas;
b) significant adjustments resulting from the audit;

12
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10.

11.

12.
13.

14.

15.

16.

c) going concern assumption;

d) any changes in accounting policies and practices;

e) compliance with applicable accounting standards;

f) compliance with the regulations of code of corporate governance and other

statutory and regulatory requirements; and

g) all related party transactions;
Review of the preliminary announcements of results prior to external communication and
publication;
Facilitating the external audit and discussion with external auditors of major observations
arising from interim and final audits and any matter that the auditors may wish to
highlight (in the absence of management, where necessary);
Review of management letter issued by external auditors and managements’ response
thereto;
Ensuring coordination between the internal and external auditors of the company;
Review of the scope and extent of internal audit, audit plan, reporting frame work and
procedures and ensuring that the internal audit function has adequate resources and is
appropriately placed within the company;
Consideration of major findings of internal investigations of activities characterized by
fraud, corruption and abuse of power and management'’s response thereto;
Ascertaining the internal control systems including financial and operational controls,
accounting systems for timely and appropriate recording of purchases and sales,
receipts and payments, assets and liabilities and the reporting structure are adequate
and effective;
Review of the company’s statement on internal control systems prior to endorsement by
the Board and internal audit reports;
Instituting special projects, value for money studies or other investigations on any matter
specified by the Board, in consultation with Chief executive officer and to consider
remittance of any matter to the external auditors or to any other external body;
Determination of compliance with relevant statutory requirements;
Monitoring compliance with these regulations (including code of corporate governance)
and identification of significant violation thereof;
Review of arrangement for staff and management to report to audit committee in
confidence, concerns, if any, about actual or potential improprieties in financial and other
matters and recommend instituting remedial and mitigating measures;

Recommend to the Board the appointment of external auditors, their removal, audit fees,
the provision of any service permissible to be rendered to the company by the external
auditors in addition to audit of its financial statements, measures for redressal and
rectification of non-compliances with the regulations. The Board shall give due
consideration to the recommendations of the audit committee and where it acts
otherwise it shall record the reasons thereof;

Consideration of any other issue or matter as may be assigned by the board;

HUMAN RESOURCES AND REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

13
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Human resource management is an important faction of management that deals with most
valuable assets of an organization which is human resource. Human Resource and
Remuneration committee of the company comprises three directors, which include one
executive director and one non-executive director being the members and one independent
director as chairman of the committee. Following three members are entrusted by the board to
form the Human Resource and Remuneration Committee:

Rashid Minhas (Chairman)
Khwajalmtiaz Ahmed (Member)
Ayesha Ahmed (Member

In accordance with code of corporate governance, the responsibilities of the committee include:

1. Recommendation to the Board for consideration and approval a policy framework for
determining remuneration of Directors (both executive and non-executive Directors and
members of senior management). The definition of senior management will be
determined by the Board which shall normally include the first layer of management
below the chief executive officer level,

2. undertaking annually, a formal process of evaluation of performance of the Board as a

whole and its committees either directly or by engaging external independent

consultant and if so appointed, a statement to that effect shall be made in the Directors’
report disclosing therein name and qualification of such consultant and major terms of
his/its appointment;

recommending human resource management policies to the Board;

4. recommending to the Board the selection, evaluation, development, compensation
(including retirement benefits) of chief operating officer, chief financial officer, company
secretary, and head of internal audit;

5. consideration and approval on recommendation of chief executive officer on such
matters for key management positions who report directly to chief executive officer or
chief operating officer; and

6. where human resource and remuneration consultants are appointed, they shall disclose
to the committee their credentials and as to whether they have any other connection with
the company.

£

RISK AND UNCERTINITIES

Company'’s ability to create value for its share holders is affected primarily by macroeconomic

variables of an economy and some associated risks with respect to its nature of business.

At present company is exposed to following risk areas which can affect the business operations

and profitability of the company:

Raw material prices (crushed bone).
14
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Foreign currency exchange rate.
Energy (availability and prices of gas & electricity)

Animal bones are pre requisite to produce high quality Gelatine. Raw material of the company
(bovine bone) is being exported to China, Japan and other neighboring countries from Pakistan.
Company has to buy animal bones on export parity price for its own consumption. Devaluation
of Pak Rupee can further aggravate the situation and procurement of animal bone at feasible

prices may become more difficult.

Devaluation of Pak Rupee always stimulates the cost-push inflation. Devaluation of Pak Rupee
will increase the prices of our industrial inputs including raw material and it can reduce the

intensity of capacity utilization.

Energy crises in the country are still not over. Pakistan is facing multifaceted energy crises.
Manufacturing sector is consuming very high priced gas, fuel and electricity. Government is
importing LNG to cater the industrial requirement. Escalation in gas prices in furtherance to the
existing tariff will further increase the manufacturing cost of the industrial concerns including

Gelatine manufacturing which can affect profitability of the company.

IMPACT ON ENVIRONMENT

Management strongly believe in maintaining the highest standard in health, safety and
environment to ensure the well being of the people who work with us as well as of the
communities where we operate. To achieve these standards, company has attained HACCP
and FSSC 22000 certifications. Manufacturing process of Gelatine adopted at factory premises
is strictly in accordance with international practices and no any hazardous impact on

environment is traced so far.

FUTURE PROSPECTS

Pakistan economy can slow down in fiscal year 2023. Main reasoning of this slow down are
effects of devastating flood, policy tightening and unfavorable balance of trade and payments.
Pak rupee is also under pressure due to these imbalances. These factors are generating cost
push inflation for manufacturing entities.

Management believes that economic volatility be settled in 2" quarter of financial year 2023 as
post flood negotiations have been started by the Government with intimated financial
institutions.

15
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We have well negotiated fresh appreciated prices for our products with local and foreign buyers.
Company is also pursuing to scale up its exports besides increase in prices which will fetch not
only foreign exchange but some more favorable pricing in terms of Pak rupee for our products.

TRAINING PROGRAMME OF DIRECTORS

Directors training is an ongoing process in the company. Company offers refresher courses to
Directors and other executives for their capacity building.

Orientation programmes during the COVID — 19 pandemic could not be carried out. Our three
Directors out of seven are exempt from training as provided by the Code of Corporate
Governance. One Director had completed his Directors Training Program (DTP). Newly elected
independent director will complete his training in specified time period as per provisions of Code
of Corporate Governance Regulations, 2019. Remaining two directors will also complete their
training till the end of current financial year.

TRADE IN SHARES OF THE COMPANY

There is no any sale/purchase/transfer of the company shares during this year by Directors,
Executives, their spouse and minor children.

AUDITORS

The present auditors, M/s M. Almas & Co. Chartered Accountants, Lahore, has completed their
assignment for the year ended June 30, 2022 and shall retire on the conclusion of 39" Annual
General Meeting. The retiring auditors M/s M. Almas & Co. Chartered Accountants are eligible
for re-appointment.

In accordance with the Listed Companies (Code of Corporate Governance) Regulations, 2019,
the audit committee considered and recommended the re-appointment and remuneration of M/s
M. Almas & Co. Chartered Accountants as statutory auditors for the year 2022-2023.

PATTERN OF SHAREHOLDING

It appears on page no:____72______

ACKNOWLEDGEMENT

The Board of Directors would like to express their appreciation for the efforts and dedication of

all employees which enabled the company management to run the business affairs smoothly.

KH. IMTIAZ AHMED IBRAR AHMED KHAWAJA
Chief Executive Officer & Managing Director Director
Lahore.

Dated: October 07, 2022
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Statement of Value Addition & Wealth Distribution
for the year ended June 30, 2022

2022 %age 2021 %age
(Rs. '000") (Rs. '000")
Value addition
Total revenue 1,080,919 990,564
Bought in materials & services (821,256) (753,601)

259,663 100.0% 236,963 100.00%

Value distribution
To employees

Salaries, wages and benefits 127,715  49.18% 131,292 55.41%
To Government

Income taxes and Sales Tax 76,058  29.29% 58,874 24.85%
To providers of capital/funds

Interest/Mark up on borrowed funds 25,735 9.91% 23,877 10.08%
Retained for reinvestment and growth

Depreciation & retained profits 30,155  11.61% 22,920 9.67%

259,663 100% 236,963 100%
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Statement of Compliance with Listed Companies (Code of
Corporate Governance) Requlations. 2019

Name of the Company: Leiner Pak Gelatine Limited

Year ended: June 30, 2022

The company has complied with the requirements of the Regulations in the
following manner:

T The total number of directors are 7 as per the following:
a Male director 6
b Female director 1

2. The composition of the Board is as follows:

Categories Name of Directors

Rashid Minhas

Independent Directors™ Syed Rizwan Haider
Ahmed Ali Riaz

Non-Executive Directors ljiaz Ahmed Khwaja
Ayesha Ahmed
Khwaja Imtiaz Ahmed

Executive Directors Ibrar Ahmed Khwaja

* In order to comply with the requirements of Listed Companies (Code of Corporate
Governance) Regulations, 2019, two independent directors were elected on the Board of
Directors upon maturity of existing term, whereas the code requires to appoint at-least two
or one-third of the Board members (whichever is higher). The fraction of 0.33 was not
rounded up as the Board feels that two appointed independent directors are sufficient to
maintain independence at the present Board level and the requisite skill is diverse enough
to provide the necessary strategic direction to the Company to accomplish its determined
goals.

3. The directors have confirmed that none of themis serving as a director
on more than seven listed companies, including this company;

4. The company has prepared a code of conduct and has ensured that
appropriate steps have been taken to disseminate it throughout the
company along with its supporting policies and procedures;
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5. The Board has developed a vision/mission statement, overall corporate
strategy and significant policies of the company. The Board has ensured
that complete record of particulars of the significant policies alongwith their
date of approval or updating is maintained by the company;

6. All the powers of the Board have been duly exercised and decisions on
relevant matters have been taken by the Board/ shareholders as empowered
by the relevant provisions of the Act and these Regulations;

7. The meetings of the Board were presided over by the Chairman and, in his
absence, by a director elected by the Board for this purpose. The
Board has complied with the requirements of Act and the Regulations
with respect to frequency, recording and circulating minutes of meeting of
the Board;

8. The Board have a formal policy and transparent procedures for
remuneration of directors in accordance with the Act and these Regulations;

9. The Board has arranged Directors’ Training program for the following:

Sr. No. Name of Directors Remarks

1 Khwaja Imtiaz Ahmed Exempt under CCG.

2 ljaz Ahmed Khwaja Exempt under CCG.

3 Ibrar Ahmed Khwaja Exempt under CCG.

4 Ahmed Ali Riaz Completed Directors’ Training Program.

10. The Board has approved appointment of chief financial officer, company
secretary and head of internal audit, including their remuneration
and terms and conditions of employment and complied with relevant
requirements of the Regulations;

11. Chief financial officer and chief executive officer duly endorsed the financial
statements before approval of the Board;

12. The Board has formed committees comprising of members given below.-

a) Audit Committee
1. Rashid Minhas (Chairman)
2. ljaz Ahmed Khwaja  (Member)
3. Ahmed Ali Riaz (Member)

b) HR and Remuneration Committee
1. Rashid Minhas (Chairman)
2. Khwaja Imtiaz Ahmed (Member)
3. Ayesha Ahmed (Member)

13.  The terms of reference of the aforesaid committees have been formed,

documented and advised to the committee for compliance;
30
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14.

15.

16.

17

18.

19. Explanations for non-compliance with requirements, other than regulations 3, 6, 7,

The frequency of meetings of the committee were as per following,-

2021-2022

a) Audit Committee; (4 quarterly meetings)

b) HR and Remuneration Committee (yearly)

The Board has set up an effective internal audit function.

The statutory auditors of the company have confirmed that they have
been given a satisfactory rating under the Quality Control Review program of
the Institute of Chartered Accountants of Pakistan and registered with Audit
Oversight Board of Pakistan, that they and all their partners are in
compliance  with International Federation of Accountants (IFAC)
guidelines on code of ethics as adopted by the Institute of Chartered
Accountants of Pakistan and that they and the partners of the firm involved in
the audit are not a close relative (spouse, parent, dependent and non-
dependent children) of the chief executive officer, chief financial officer,
head of internal audit, company secretary or director of the company;

The statutory auditors or the persons associated with them have not
been appointed to provide other services except in accordance with the
Act, these Regulations or any other regulatory requirement and the auditors

have confirmed that they have observed IFAC guidelines in this regard;

We confirm that all requirements of regulations 3, 6, 7, 8, 27, 32, 33
and 36 of the Regulations have been complied with; and

8, 27, 32, 33 and 36 are below:

Sr

No

Requirement

Explanation of Non-
Compliance

Regulation
Number

Directors’ Training Program (DTP)

It is encouraged that by June 30, 2022, all
directors on the Board have acquired the
prescribed certification under any director
training program offered by institutions,
local or foreign, that meet the criteria
specified by the Commission and approved
by it.

Four directors of the Company have
either acquired Directors’ Training
Program  certification or are
exempted under CCG. One director,
Syed Rizwan Haider, newly elected
on 18-01-2022 will complete the
Directors’ Training Program within
the prescribed time. Whereas two
other directors namely, Rashid
Minhas and Ayesha Ahmed will
complete Directors’ Training Program
before June 30, 2023.

19(1)

Directors’ Training Program (DTP)
Companies are encouraged to arrange
training for at least one femaleexecutive
every year under the Directors’ Training
Program from year July 2020.

The Company has planned to
arrange Directors’ Training Program
certification for female executive over
the next few years.

19(3)
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A —m—— The resp_ons_ibilities as_prescribed _for 29)

The Board may constitute a separate g Namination tammiiae i gRing
) . S addressed at Board level, with the help

committee, designated as the Nomination of Hurmean Resonres and Remunatation
Committee, of such number and class of Committee, as and when needed so a
directors, as it may deem appropriate in its separate committee is not considered
circumstances. to be necessary.

4 | Risk Management Committee Currently, the Board has not 30
The Board may constitute the Risk constituted a Risk Management
Management Committee, of such number Committee and senior officers of the
and class of directors, as it may deem Company along with the Audit
appropriate in its circumstances, to carry Committee perform the requisite
out a review of effectiveness of risk functions and apprise the Board
management procedures and present a accordingly.
report to the Board.

Khwaja Imtiaz Ahmed Ahmed Ali Riaz
Chief Executive Office Chairman
LAHORE

Dated: October 07, 2022
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REVIEW REPORT

To the members of Leiner Pak Gelatine Limited

Review Report on the Statement of Compliance contained in Listed Companies (Code of
Corporate Governance) Regulations, 2019

We have reviewed the enclosed Statement of Compliance with the Listed Companies (Code of Corporate
Governance) Regulations, 2019 (the Regulations) prepared by the Board of Directors of Leiner Pak
Gelatine Limited for the year ended June 30, 2022 in accordance with the requirements of regulation 36
of the Regulations.

The responsibility for compliance with the Regulations is that of the Board of Directors of the Company. Our
responsibility is to review whether the Statement of Compliance reflects the status of the Company's
compliance with the provisions of the Regulations and report if it does not and to highlight any non-
compliance with the requirements of the Regulations. A review is limited primarily to inquiries of the
Company's personnel and review of various documents prepared by the Company to comply with the
Regulations.

As a part of our audit of the financial statements we are required to obtain an understanding of the
accounting and internal control systems sufficient to plan the audit and develop an effective audit approach.
We are not required to consider whether the Board of Directors’ statement on internal control covers all
risks and controls or to form an opinion on the effectiveness of such internal controls, the Company's
corporate governance procedures and risks.

The Regulations require the Company to place before the Audit Committee, and upon recommendation of
the Audit Committee, place before the Board of Directors for their review and approval, its related party
transactions. We are only required and have ensured compliance of this requirement to the extent of the
approval of the related party transactions by the Board of Directors upon recommendation of the Audit
Committee.

Based on our review, nothing has come to our attention which causes us to believe that the Statement of
Compliance does not appropriately reflect the Company's compliance, in all material respects, with the
requirements contained in the Regulations as applicable to the Company for the year ended June 30,
2022.

Lahore
Dated: October 07, 2022 M. Almas & Co.
UDIN: CR202210145KTePmCuhk Chartered Accountants

Audit Engagement Partner

Mohammad ljaz
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

To the members of Leiner Pak Gelatine Limited
Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements
Opinion

We have audited the annexed financial statements of Leiner Pak Gelatine Limited (the Company), which
comprise the statement of financial position as at June 30, 2022, and the statement of profit or loss, the
statement of comprehensive income, the statement of changes in equity, the statement of cash flows for the year
then ended, and notes to the financial statements, including a summary of significant accounting policies and
other explanatory information, and we state that we have obtained all the information and explanations which, to
the best of our knowledge and belief, were necessary for the purposes of the audit.

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the statement of
financial position, the statement of profit or loss, the statement of comprehensive income, the statement of
changes in equity and the statement of cash flows together with the notes forming part thereof conform with the
accounting and reporting standards as applicable in Pakistan and give the information required by the
Companies Act, 2017 (XIX of 2017), in the manner so required and respectively give a true and fair view of the
state of the Company's affairs as at June 30, 2022, and of the profit, other comprehensive income, the changes
in equity and its cash flows for the year then ended.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (ISAs) as applicable in Pakistan.
Our responsibilities under those standards are further described in the Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of
the Financial Statements section of our report. We are independent of the Company in accordance with the
International Ethics Standards Board for Accountants' Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants as adopted by
the Institute of Chartered Accountants of Pakistan (the Code) and we have fulfilled our other ethical
responsibilities in accordance with the Code. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient
and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Material Uncertainty relating to Going Concern

We draw attention to Note 2 in the financial statements, which indicates that as at June 30, 2022 the Company
has negative cash flow from operating activities during the year ended June 30, 2022 and, as of that date, its
current liabilities exceeded its current assets by Rupees 7.299 million. As stated in note 2, these events or
conditions, along with other matters as set forth in Note 2 indicate that a material uncertainty exists that may cast
significant doubt on the Company's ability to continue as a going concern. Our opinion is not modified in respect
of this matter.

Key Audit Matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgement, were of most significance in our audit of
the financial statements of the current period. These matters were addressed in the context of our audit of the
financial statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on
these matters. In addition to the matter described in the Material Uncertainty Related to Going Concern section,
we have determined the matters described below to be the key audit matters to be communicated in our report.

Key audit matters How the matter was addressed in our audit

1. Review of recoverability of deferred tax
asset
(Refer to notes 5.12 and 11 of the financial | Our procedures in relation to this matter included:

statements)
- Evaluating the Directors’ determination of the estimated

Under International Accounting Standard 12, | manner in which the deferred tax asset would be utilized by
Income Taxes, the Company is required to | comparing the Directors’ assessment to business plans and
review recoverability of the deferred tax assets profit forecasts based on our knowledge of the business and
recognized in the statement of financial | theindustry in which Company operates;

peslichataach repoting perind. - Critically assessing whether profit forecasts are reasonable

in relation to historical trends, current year performance and

Recognition of deferred tax asset position future plans:

involved management's estimate of future
available taxable profits of the Company based
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on approved business plan. There is inherent
uncertainty involved in forecasting future
taxable profits and the probability of utilizing
the estimated minimum tax credits. Therefore,
the recoverability of the Company’s deferred
tax asset was considered a key audit matter in
our audit of the financial statements.

We considered this a key audit matter due to
significant value of deferred tax asset on
account of minimum tax and assumptions used
by the management in this area.

- Analyzing the requirements of the Income Tax Ordinance,
2001, in relation to above and considering the factors
including aging analysis, expiry periods of relevant deferred
tax assets and tax rates enacted; and

- Assessing the appropriateness of management's
accounting for deferred taxes and the accuracy of related
disclosures.

2. Valuation of stock in trade

(Refer notes 5.4, 20 and 28 of the financial
statements.)

Stock in trade as at year ended June 30, 2022
having carrying value of Rs. 650.226 million
constitutes 40.354% of total assets.

We identified the valuation of stock in trade as
key audit matter as it directly affects the
profitability of the Company.

Our audit procedures to assess the valuation of stock in
trade, amongst others, included the following:

- Obtaining an understanding of internal controls over
purchases and valuation of stock in trade and testing, on a
sample basis, their design, implementation, and operating
effectiveness;

- Comparing on as sample basis specific purchases with
underlying supporting documents / agreements, if any;

- Comparing calculations of the allocation of directly
attributable costs and allocation of factory overhead costs
with the underlying supporting documents;

- Physical observation of stock in trade inventory count at the
year end,;

- Test of valuation methods and their appropriateness in
accordance with applicable accounting standards;

- Obtaining an understanding of management's determination
of net realizable value (NRV) and the key estimates adopted,
including future selling prices, future costs to complete work
in process and costs necessary to make the sales and their
basis; and

- Comparing the NRV, on a sample basis, to the cost of
finished goods to assess whether any adjustments are
required to value stock in trade in accordance with applicable
accounting and reporting standards.
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3. Revaluation of freehold land Our audit procedures included the following:
(Refer notes 5.1, 7 and 16 of the financial . We enquired about the qualification of the
statements.) managements' independent valuer and reviewed the

revaluation report to understand the basis and

) ) ) methodology used for such valuation.
During the year, the Company has carried out its|

revaluation of the freehold land by an independent
valuer by considering its nature, size, and location,
as well as the trend in the real estate property,
sector. Based on such revaluation, the fair market
value and forced sale value of the said land is
amounting to Rs. 573.480 million and Rs. 458.784
million respectively, leading to recognition of]
revaluation surplus amounting to Rs. 565.654
million.

- We assessed the adequacy of the related disclosures
in the financial statements in accordance with
applicable financial reporting standards and relating
regulatory requirements.

Due to significant judgments and estimations
involved in the determination of the revalued
amount, we considered this area as a key audit
matter.

Information Other than the Financial Statements and Auditor’s Report Thereon

Management is responsible for the other information. The other information comprises the information included in
the Annual Report, but does not include the financial statements and our auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not express any form of
assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other information and, in
doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the financial statements or our
knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated.

If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other
information, we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

Responsibilities of Management and Board of Directors for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in accordance
with the accounting and reporting standards as applicable in Pakistan and the requirements of Companies Act,
2017(XIX of 2017) and for such internal control as management determines is necessary to enable the
preparation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the Company’s ability to continue
as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going concemn
basis of accounting unless management either intends to liquidate the Company or to cease operations, or has
no realistic alternative but to do so.

Board of directors are responsible for overseeing the Company's financial reporting process.
Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are free
from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor's report that includes our
opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in
accordance with 1SAs as applicable in Pakistan will always detect a material misstatement when it exists.
Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they
could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial
statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with ISAs as applicable in Pakistan, we exercise professional judgement and
maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also:
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« |dentify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud
or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that
is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material
misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve
collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

e  Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that
are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the
effectiveness of the Company’s internal control.

» Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates and related disclosures made by management.

¢ Conclude on the appropriateness of management’'s use of the going concern basis of accounting and,
based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or
conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern. If we
conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s report to the
related disclosures in the financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our
opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s report.
However, future events or conditions may cause the Company to cease to continue as a going concern.

e [Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements, including the
disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent the underlying transactions and events in a
manner that achieves fair presentation.

We communicate with the board of directors regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and timing of
the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify
during our audit.

We also provide the board of directors with a statement that we have complied with relevant ethical requirements
regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and other matters that may reasonably be
thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable, related safeguards.

From the matters communicated with the board of directors. we determine those matters that were of most
significance in the audit of the financial statements of the current period and are therefore the key audit matters.
We describe these matters in our auditor's report unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure about the
matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a matter should not be communicated in our
report because the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public interest
benefits of such communication.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements
Based on our audit, we further report that in our opinion:

a) proper books of account have been kept by the Company as required by the Companies Act, 2017
(XIX of 2017);

b) the statement of financial position, the statement of profit or loss, the statement of comprehensive
income, the statement of changes in equity and the statement of cash flows together with the notes
thereon have been drawn up in conformity with the Companies Act, 2017 (XIX of 2017) and are in
agreement with the books of account and returns;

c) investments made, expenditure incurred and guarantees extended during the year were for the
purpose of the Company's business; and

d) no Zakat was deductible at source under the Zakat and Ushr Ordinance, 1980 (XVIII of 1980).

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in this independent auditor's report is Mohammad ljaz.

Lahore M. Almas & Co.
Date: October 07, 2022 Chartered Accountants

UDIN: AR202210145szxSROF1C
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STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
AS AT JUNE 30, 2022

Note 30 June 2022 30 June 2021

EQUITY AND LIABILITIES

Share capital and reserves

Share capital 6 75,000 75,000
Revenue Reserve:
Unappropriated profit 10,008 1,732
Capital Reserve:
Surplus on revaluation of property, plant
and equipment 7 565,654 336,262
Sponsor's Loan — Related Party 8 82,500 -
733,162 412,994
Non-current liabilities
Deferred taxation 1 671 -
Long term finance 9 - 16,425
Lease liabilities 10 11,729 6,953
12,400 23,378
Current liabilities
Trade and other payables 12 577,727 409,390
Unclaimed dividend 771 771
Mark-up accrued 13 4,865 3,411
Short term borrowings 14 264,072 260,827
Current portion of long term finance 9 15,611 21,200
Current portion of lease liabilities 10 2,698 4,240
865,744 708,839
Contingencies and commitments 15 - -
1,611,306 1,145,211
ASSETS
Non-current assets
Property, plant and equipment 16 749,756 520,775
Intangible assets 17 - -
Long term deposits 18 3,105 1,799
Deferred taxation 1 - -
752,861 522,574
Current assets
Stores, spare parts and loose tools 19 106,909 108,211
Stock-in-trade 20 650,226 431,120
Trade debts 21 22,309 8,622
Advances 22 2,128 2,331
Trade deposits and short term prepayments 23 1,408 686
Other receivables 24 28,980 26,737
Advance income tax-net 25 44,214 40,329
Cash and bank balances 26 2,271 4,601
858,445 622,637
1,611,306 1,145,211
The annexed notes 1 to 48 form an integral part of these financial statements.
KH. IMTIAZ AHMED IBRAR AHMED KH. MUHAMMAD JAVAID

LAHORE
Dated: October 07, 2022

Chief Executive Officer
& Managing Director
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STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2022

Sales-net
Cost of sales
Gross profit

Other income

Distribution cost
Administrative expenses
Other operating expenses
Finance cost

Profit before taxation
Taxation

Profit after taxation

Earning per share-basic and diluted (Rupees)

Note 30 June 2022
mmmmmmmm-em-e===RUpees in thousand----=--=s=ven---

27
28
29
30
31
32
33

34

35

2021-2022

30 June 2021

The annexed notes 1 to 48 form an integral part of these financial statements.

KH. IMTIAZ AHMED
LAHORE Chief Executive Officer
Dated: October 07, 2022 & Managing Director

1,012,393 941,515
867,460 836,630
144,933 104,885

4,643 3,419
149,576 108,304
30,220 10,200
66,820 51,633
2,138 1,805
29,276 26,418
21,122 18,248
12,846 13,244
8,276 5,004
1.10 0.67
IBRAR AHMED KH. MUHAMMAD JAVAID

Director
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STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2022

30 June 2022 30 June 2021

Profit after taxation 8,276 5,004

Other comprehensive income

ltems that will not be subsequently reclassified to profit or loss:

Surplus on Revaluation of property, plant and equipment

during the year 229,392 -
229,392 -
Total comprehensive income for the year 237,668 5,004

The annexed notes 1 to 48 form an integral part of these financial statements.

KH. IMTIAZ AHMED IBRAR AHMED KH. MUHAMMAD JAVAID
LAHORE Chief Executive Officer Director Chief Financial Officer
Dated: October 07, 2022 & Managing Director
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STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2022
Reserves
Share capital Revenue Reserve Capital Reserve
Issued, (Accumulated Surplus on 3
subscribed and loss) [ revaluation of 59:::: S Total
paid up share Unappropriated property, plant
capital profit and equipment
Rup in thousand
Balance at June 30, 2020 75,000 (3,272) 336,262 - 407,990
Profit for the year - 5,004 - - 5,004
Other comprehensive income - - - -
5,004 - - 5,004
Balance at June 30, 2021 75,000 1,732 336,262 - 412,994
Sponsor's Loan — received during the year - - 82,500 82,500
Profit for the year - 8.276 - - 8,276
Other comprehensive income - 229,392 - 229,392
- 8,276 229,392 82,500 320,168
Balance at June 30, 2022 75,000 10,008 565,654 82,500 733,162
The annexed notes 1 to 48 form an integral part of these financial statements.
KH. IMTIAZ AHMED IBRAR AHMED KH. MUHAMMAD JAVAID
LAHORE Chief Executive Officer Director Chief Financial Officer

Dated: October 07, 2022 & Managing Director
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STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2022

2021-2022

30 June 2022 30 June 2021

Note ————meemee| Rupees in thousand----------------
CASH FLOW FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Cash generated from operations 36 6,791 100,391
Finance cost paid (26,287) (26,636)
Payments to provident fund (3,499) (3,358)
Taxes paid (16,060) (16,093)
Sales tax paid (2,243) (5.294)
Workers' Welfare Fund paid - (171)
Workers' Profit Participation Fund paid (1,189) (215)
Net cash (used in) / generated from operating activities (42,487) 48,624
CASH FLOW FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Additions to property, plant and equipment (14,098) (28,945)
Proceeds from disposal of property, plant and equipment 2,667 435
Increase in long term deposits (1,560) (1,544)
Net cash used in investing activities (12,991) (30,054)
CASH FLOW FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Payment of lease liabilities (1,583) (2,631)
Sponsor's Loan received — Equity 82,500 -
Long-term finance from banking companies — repaid - net (22,014) (5,407)
Short-term Borrowings —repaid - net (5,755) (6,396)
Net cash generated from / (used in) financing activities 53,148 (14,434)
Net (decrease) / increase in cash and cash equivalents (2,330) 4,136
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year 4,601 465
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year 37 2,271 4,601
The annexed notes 1 to 48 form an integral part of these financial statements.

KH. IMTIAZ AHMED IBRAR AHMED KH. MUHAMMAD JAVAID

LAHORE Chief Executive Officer Director Chief Financial Officer
Dated: October 07, 2022 & Managing Director
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2022

31

THE COMPANY AND ITS OPERATIONS

Leiner Pak Gelatine Limited ("the Company") was incorporated in Pakistan on 14 February 1983 as a public limited Company. The registered office of the
Company is situated at 17-G, Gulberg I, Lahore and manufacturing facility is located at 19 Kilometer, Shahrah-e-Pakistan, Kala Shah Kaku, District
Sheikhupura, The Company is listed on the Pakistan Stock Exchange. The principal activity of the Company is manufacturing and sale of gelatine and di-
calcium phosphate etc. produced from animal bones and animal hides.

GOING CONCERN BASIS OF ACCOUNTING

The Company has negative cash flow from operating activities during the year ended June 30, 2022 and, as of that date, its current liabilities exceeded its
current assets by Rupees 7.299 million. These events or conditions indicate that a material uncertainty exists that may cast significant doubt on the Company’s
ability to continue as a going concern and, therefore, the Company may be unable to realize its assets and discharge its liabilities in the normal course of
business.

Although production of gelatin has been decreased during the year but due to positive impact of the measures taken by the Company management, the gross
profit has increased from 11.14% to 14.32% and the sales value has recorded increase of 7.5% during the year ended June 30, 2022 thereby resulting into
profit after tax amounting to Rs 8.276 million. The approved financial projections also show continued improvements and profitability. Further, keeping in view
the following factors, the management foresees that the Company will continue to be a going concern.

" There is continued demand for the products of the Company. Demand of "Halal' Gelatine exists in foreign and local markets as “Halal" Gelatine
is equally consumed in Muslim and Non-Muslim countries.

" There is continued financial support of the Company’s sponsors. The sponsor's of the Company have inducted up to June 30, 2022 Rupees
54.828 million (June 30, 2021: Rupees 111.166 million) interest free loans and a new sponsor's loan Rupees 82.5 million. They are also
committed to induct further funds, if the need arises, to address any liquidity issues for smooth operations; and

[ ] The existence of new sales orders (local as well as exports) along with advance payments received there against.

These financial statements have, therefore, been prepared using geing concern basis of accounting and, accordingly, do not include any adjustments relating to
realization of its assets and the liquidation of any liabilities that might be necessary should the Company be unable to continue as a going concern.

NEW STANDARDS, INTERPRETATIONS AND AMENDMENTS TO PUBLISHED APPROVED ACCOUNTING STANDARDS

The Company has adopted all the new standards and amendments to the following approved accounting standards as applicable in Pakistan which became
effective during the year:

New accounting standards, amendments and IFRS interpretations that are effective for the year ended June 30, 2022

The following standards, amendments and interpretations are effective for the year ended June 30, 2022. These standards, amendments and interpretations
are either not relevant to the Company's operations or are not expected to have significant impact on the financial statements other than certain additional
disclosures.

Effective date
(Annual Periods
beginning on Or

after)
Interest Rate Benchmark Reform - Phase 2
(Amendments to IFRS 9, 1AS 38, IFRS 7, IFRS 4 and IFRS 16) January 01, 2021
Amendments to IFRS 16 ‘Leases' - Extended practical relief
regarding Covid - 19 related rent concessions April 01, 2021
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2022

3.2 New accounting standards, amendments and interpretations that are not yet effective

The following standards, amendments and interpretations are only effective for accounting periods, beginning on or after the date mentioned against each of
them. These standards, amendments and interpretations are either not relevant to the Company’s operations or are not expected to have significant impact on
the Company's financial statements other than certain additional disclosures.

Effective date
(Annual Periods
beginning on Or

after)
Amendments to IFRS 3 ‘Business Combinations’ - Reference to January 01, 2022
the conceptual framework
Amendments to |IAS 1 ‘Presentation of Financial Statements’ - January 01, 2024
Classification of liabilities as current or non-current
Amendments to IAS 1 'Presentation of Financial Statements’ - January 01, 2023
Disclosure of Accounting Policies
Amendments to IAS 8 ‘Accounting Policies, Changes in January 01, 2023
Accounting Estimates and Errors’ - Definition of Accounting
Estimates
Amendments to IAS 12 'Income Taxes' - Deferred T ax related to January 01, 2023
Assets and Liabilities arising from a single transaction
Amendments to IAS 16 'Property, Plant and Equipment’ - January 01, 2022
Proceeds before intended use
Amendments to |IAS 37 'Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and January 01, 2022
Contingent Assets’ - Onerous Contracts - Cost of fulfiling a
contract

Certain annual improvements have also been made to a number of IFRSs

The following new standards and interpretations have been issued by the International Accounting Standards Board (IASB), which have not been adopted
locally by the Securities and Exchange Commission of Pakistan (SECP);

IFRS 1 First Time Adoption of International Financial Reporting Standards

IFRS 17 Insurance Contracts

4 BASIS OF PREPARATION
41 S t of liance

These financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the accounting and reporting standards as applicable in Pakistan. The accounting and
reporting standards applicable in Pakistan comprise of:

- International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRSs) issued by the International Accounting Standards Board (IASB) as notified under the Companies Act,
2017; and

- Provisions of and directives issued under the Companies Act, 2017,

Where provisions of and directives issued under the Companies Act, 2017 differ from the IFRSs, the provisions of and directives issued under the Companies
Act, 2017 have been followed.

4.2 Basis of measurement

These financial statements have been prepared under the historical cost convention except for freehold land at revalued amount. In these financial statements,
except for the statement of cash flows , all transactions have been accounted for on accrual basis,

43 Jud esti and ti
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The preparation of the financial statements in conformity with approved accounting standards requires management to make judgments, estimates and
assumptions that affect the application of accounting policies and reported amounts of assets, liabilities, income and expenses, The estimates and associated
assumptions and judgments are based on historical experience and various other factors that are believed to be reasonable under the circumstances, the result
of which forms the basis of making judgments about carrying value of assets and liabilities that are not readily apparent from other sources. Actual results may
differ from these estimates.

Estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are recognized in the period in which the estimate
Is revised and in any future periods affected.

Judgements made by managemaent in the application of approved accounting standards that have significant effect on the financial statements and estimates
with a significant risk of material adjustment in the subseguent years are discussed in the note - 38.

4.4  Functional and pr tion currency

Items included in financial statements are measured using the currency of the primary economic environment in which the Company operates. The financial
statements are presented in Pakistan Rupees, which is the Company’s functional and presentation currency.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2022

5.1

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The accounting policies set out below have been applied consistently to all periods presented in the financial statements.

Property, plant and equipment
Recognition and measurement

Praperty, plant and equipment are tangible iterns that are held for use in production or supply of goods or services, for rentals to others or for administrative
purposes and are expected to be used during more than one year. An item of property, plant and equipment is recognized when it is probable that future
economic benefits associated with the item will flow to the entity and the cost of the item can be measured reliably. On initial recognition, items of property, plant
and equipment are measured at cost. Cost includes expenditures that are directly attributable to the acquisition of the item.

Subsequent to initial recognition, items of property, plant and equipment are measured at cost less accumulated depreciation and impairment losses with the
exception of freehold land which is measured at revalued amount.

Parts of an item of property, plant and equipment having different useful lives are recognized as separate items.

Major renewals and improvements to an item of property, plant and equipment are recognized in the carrying amount of the item If it is probable that the
embodied future economic benefits will flow to the Company and the cost of renewal or improvement can be measured reliably. The cost of the day-to-day
servicing of property, plant and equipment are recognized in profit or loss as incurred.

Increases in the carrying amounts arising on revaluation of land are recognized, in other comprehensive income and accumulated in revaluation surplus in
shareholders' equity. To the extent that increase reverses a decrease previously recognized in the statement of profit or loss, the increase is first recognized in
the statement of profit or loss. Decreases that reverse previous increases of the same asset are first recognized in other comprehensive income to the extent
of the remaining surplus attributable to the asset; all other decreases are charged to the statement of profit or loss. The revaluation surplus is not available for
distribution to the Company's shareholders.

Capital work-in-progress
Capital work-in-progress is stated at cost less accumulated impairment losses, if any.
Depreciation

Depreciation is recognized in profit or loss by applying reducing balance method over the useful life of each item of property, plant and equipment using the
rates specified in note 16.1 to the financial statements.

Depreciation on additions to property, plant and equipment is charged from the month in which the item becomes available for use. Depreciation is discontinued
from the month in which the item is disposed or classified as held for disposal.

The depreciation method, useful lives and residual values are reviewed and adjusted if appropriate, at each reporting date.

De-recognition

An item of property, plant and equipment is de-recognized on disposal or when no future economic benefits are expected from its use or disposal. Any profit or
loss on disposal of property, plant and equipment is recognized in profit or loss.,
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2022
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5.4

55

5.5.1

Intangible assets

An intangible asset is an identifiable non-monitory asset without physical substance.

Intangible assets are recognized when it is probable that the expected future benefits will flow to the entity and the cost of the asset can be measured reliably.
Cost of intangible asset (i.e. computer software) includes purchase cost and directly attributable expenses incidental to bring the asset for its intended use.

Cost associated with maintaining computer software are recognized as an expense as and when incurred.

Intangible assets are stated at cost less accumulated amortization and accumulated impairment losses, if any. Amortization is charged over the estimated
useful life of the asset as specified in note 17 on a systematic basis applying the straight line method.

Useful lives of intangible operating assets are reviewed, at each reporting date and adjusted if the impact of amortization is significant.
Stores, spare parts and loose tools
These are generally held for internal use and, except for items in transit which are valued at invoice price plus related expenses incurred up to the reporting

date, are valued at lower of cost and net realizable value. Cost is determined on the basis of weighted average. Provision for obsolete and slow moving items is
made based on management’s best estimate regarding their future usability,

Stock-in-trade

These are valued at lower of cost and net realizable value. Cost is determined using the following basis:

Raw material Weighted average cost

Work-in-process Average manufacturing cost

Finished goods Average manufacturing cost

Raw material in transit Invoice price plus related expenses incurred up to the reporting date.

Average manufacturing cost in relation to work-in-process and finished goods consists of direct material, labor and a proportion of appropriate manufacturing
overheads.

Met realizable value signifies the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of business less estimated costs of completion and estimated costs necessary to
make the sale.

For items which are slow moving, a provision is made for excess of carrying amount over estimated net realizable value.
Financial instruments
Financial assets

The Company classifies its financial assets at amortized cost, fair value through other comprehensive income or fair value through profit or loss on the basis of
the Company’s business model for managing the financial assets and the contractual cash flow characteristics of the financial asset.

a) Financial assets at amortized cost
Financial assets at amortized cost are held within a business model whose objective is to hold financial assets in order to collect contractual cash flows and the
contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments of principal and interest on the principal amount

outstanding. Interest income from these financial assets, impairment losses, foreign exchange gains and losses, and gain or loss arising on derecognition are
recognized directly in profit or loss.
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b) Financial assets at fair value through other comprehensive income

Financial assets at fair value through other comprehensive income are held within a business model whose objective is achieved by both collecting contractual
cash flows and selling financial assets and the contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments of
principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding.

c) Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss are those financial assets which are either designated in this category or not classified in any of the other
categories. A gain or loss on debt investment that is subsequently measured at fair value through profit or loss is recognized in profit or loss in the period in
which it arises.

Financial assets are initially measured at cost, which is the fair value of the consideration given and received respectively. These financial assets and liabilities
are subsequently remeasured to fair value, amortized cost or cost as the case may be. Any gain or loss on the recognition and de-recognition of the financial
assets and liabilities is included in the profit or loss for the period in which it arises.

Financial assets are derecognized when the rights to receive cash flows from the assets have expired or have been transferred and the Company has
transferred substantially all risks and rewards of ownership. Assets or liabilities that are not contractual in nature and that are created as a result of statutory
requirements imposed by the Government are not the financial instruments of the Company.

The Company assesses on a forward looking basis the expected credit losses associated with its financial assets carried at amortized cost and fair value
through other comprehensive income. The impairment methodology applied depends on whether there has been a significant increase in credit risk. For trade
receivables, the Company applies the simplified approach, which requires expected lifetime losses to be recognized from initial recognition of the receivables.
The Company recognizes in profit or loss, as an impairment gain or loss, the amount of expected credit losses (or reversal) that is required to adjust the loss
allowance at the reporting date.

Financial liabilities

All financial liabilities are recognized at the time when the Company becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the instrument. Financial liabilities at
amortized costs are initially measured at fair value minus transaction costs. Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss are initially recognized at fair
value and transaction costs are expensed in the profit or loss.

Financial liabilities, other than those at fair value through profit or loss, are subsequently measured at amortized cost using the effective yield method.

A financial liability is derecognized when the obligation under the liability is discharged, cancelled or expired. Where an existing financial liability is replaced by
another from the same lender on substantially different terms, or the terms of an existing liability are substantially modified, such an exchange and modification
is treated as a derecognition of the original liability and the recognition of a new liability, and the difference in respective carrying amounts is recognized in the
profit or loss.

Off-setting of financial assets and financial liabilities

A financial asset and a financial liability is offset and the net amount is reported in the financial statements if the Company has a legally enforceable right to set-
off the transaction and also intends either to settle on a net basis or to realize the asset and setlle the liability simultaneously.

Right-of-use assets and Lease liabilities
Right-of-use assets

Right of use assets are initially measured at cost being the present value of lease payments, inltial direct costs, any lease payments made at or before the
commencement of the lease as reduced by any incentives received. These are subsequently measured at cost less accumulated depreciation and
accumulated impairment losses, if any.

Depreciation is charged on straight line basis over the shorter of the lease term or the useful life of the asset. Where the ownership of the asset transfers to the
Company at the end of the lease term or if the cost of the asset reflects that the Company will exercise the purchase option, depreciation is charged over the
useful life of asset, Depreciation is charged to profit or loss account at rates given in note 16.1.

Lease liabilities

Lease liabilities are initially measured at the present value of the lease payments discounted using the interest rate implicit in the lease. If the implicit rate
cannot be readily determined, the Company's incremental borrowing rate is used. Subsequently these are increased by interest, reduced by lease payments
and remeasured for lease modifications, if any, It is re-measured when there is a change in future lease payments arising from a change in an index or rate, a
change in assessment of whether extension option is reasonably certain to be exercised or a termination option is reasonably certain not to be exercised. The
corresponding adjustment is made to the carrying amount of the right-of-use asset, or is recorded in profit or loss if the carrying amount of right-of-use asset
has been reduced to zero.

Liabilities in respect of short term and low value leases are not recognized and payments against such leases are recognized as expense in profit or loss. At
inception of a contract, the Company assesses whether a contract is, or contains, a lease based on whether the contract conveys the right to control the use of
an identified asset for a period of time In exchange for a consideration and uses hindsight when determining the lease term If the contract contains options to
extend or terminate the lease.

Employee benefits

A defined contribution plan s a post-employment benefit under which an entity pays fixed contribution into a separate entity and will have no legal or
constructive obligation to pay further amounts. Obligation for contribution to a defined contribution plan is recognized as an employee service benefit expense in
the statement of profit or loss when it is due.

The Company operates a recognized provident fund for all its regular employees. Equal monthly contributions are made to the fund both by the Company and
employees at the rate of B.5% of the basic salary. The fund is administrated by the Trustees.
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5.8 Trade and other payables
Trade and other payables are recognized initially at fair value and subsequently measured at amortized cost,
5.9 Trade debts and other receivables

Trade debts and other receivables are recognized initially at the amount of consideration that is unconditional, unless they contain significant financing
component in which case such are recognized at fair value. The Company holds the trade debts with the objective of collecting the contractual cash flows and
therefore measures the trade debts subsequently at amortized cost using the effective interest method. Impairment of trade debts and other receivables is
described in note 5.16.

5.10 Revenue Recognition
- Local sales are recognized as revenue when invoiced with the transfer of control of goods, which coincides with delivery.

- Export sales are recognized as revenue when invoiced with the transfer of control of goods, which coincides either with the date of bill of lading Goods
Declaration or upon delivery to customer or its representative, based on terms of arrangement.

5.11 Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition, construction or production of qualifying assets, which are assets that ily take a sut itial
period of time to get ready for their intended use or sale, or added to the cost of those assets, until such time as the assets are substantially ready for their
intended use or sale. Investment income earned on the temporary investment of specific borrowings pending their expenditure on qualifying asset is deducted
from the borrowing costs eligible for capitalization. All other borrowing costs are recognized in the profit or loss as incurred.

5.12 Taxation

Income tax expense comprises current and deferred tax. Income tax expense is recognized in the statement of profit or loss, except to the extent that it relates
to items recognized directly in equity or in other comprehensive income, in which case it is recognized in equity or in other comprehensive income respectively.
In making the estimates for income taxes currently payable by the Company, the management considers the current income tax law and the decisions of
appellate authorities on certain issues in the past.

Current

Provision for current taxation is the amount computed on taxable income at the current rates of taxation or alternative corporate tax computed on accounting
income or minimum tax on turnover, whichever is higher, and taxes paid / payable on final tax basis. after taking into account tax credits. rebates and
exemptions available, if any. The charge for the current tax also includes adjustments where necessary, relating to prior years which arise from the
assessments made / finalized during the year. The amount of unpaid income tax in respect of current or prior periods is recognized as a liability. Any excess
paid over what is due in respect of the current or the prior periods is recognized as an asset.

Deferred

Deferred tax is accounted for using the balance sheet liability method providing for temporary differences between the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities
for the financial reporting purposes and the amounts used for tax purposes. In this regard, the effects on deferred taxation of the portion of income that is
subject to final tax regime is also considered in accordance with the requirement of "Technical Release-27" of The Institute of Chartered Accountants of
Pakistan.

Deferred tax is measured at rates that are expected to be applied to the temporary differences when they reverse based on laws that have been enacted or
substantively enacted by the reporting date. A deferred tax liability is recognized for all taxable temporary differences. A deferred tax asset is recognized for
deductible temporary differences to the extent that future taxable profits will be available against which deductible temporary differences can be utilized.
Deferred tax assets are reviewed at each reporting date and are reduced to the extent that it is no longer probable that the related tax benefit will be realized.

5.13 Earnings per share (EPS)

Basic EPS is calculated by dividing the profit or loss attributable to ordinary shareholders of the Company by the weighted average number of ordinary shares
outstanding during the period.

Diluted EPS is calculated by adjusting basic EPS by the weighted average number of ordinary shares that would be issued on conversion of all dilutive potential
ordinary shares into ordinary shares and post-tax effect of changes in profit or loss attributable to ordinary sharehoiders of the Company that would result from
conversion of all dilutive potential ordinary shares into ordinary shares,

5.14 Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents for the purpose of statement of cash flows comprise cash and bank balances. Cash and cash equivalents are carried at cost.

5.15 Foreign currency transactions

Transactions in foreign currency are translated 1o the functional currency of the Company using exchange rate at the date of transaction. Monetary assets and
liabilities denominated in foreign currency at the reporting date are transiated to the functional currency at exchange rate at that date. Non-monetary assets and
liabilities denominated In foreign currency that are measured at fair value are translated to the functional currency at exchange rate al the date that fair value
was determined. Non-monetary assals and liabilities denominated in foreign currency that are measured al historical cosl ara translated to the functional
currency at exchange rate al the date of transaction. Any gain or loss arising on transaction is recognized in profit or loss.

516 Impairment
Financial assets
The Company recognizes loss allowances for Expected Credit Losses (ECLs) in respect of financial assets measured at amortized cost
The Company measures loss allowances at an amount equal to lifetime ECLs, except for the following, which are measured at 12-month ECLs:
- debt securities that are determined to have low credit risk at the reporting date; and

- other debt securities and bank balance for which credit risk (i.e. the risk of defaull occurring over the expectad life of the financial instrumant) has not
increased significantly since initial recognition.

Loss allowances for trade receivables are always measured at an amount equal to lifetime ECLs.
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When determining whether the credit risk of a financial asset has increased significantly since initial recognition and when estimating ECLs, the Company
considers reasonable and supportable information that is relevant and available without undue cost or effort. This includes both guantitative and qualitative
information and analysis, based on the Company's historical experience and informed credit assessment and including forward-looking information.

The Company assumes that the credit risk on a financial asset has increased significantly if it is more than past due for a reasonable period of time. Lifetime
ECLs are the ECLs that result from all possible default events over the expected life of a financial instrument. 12-month ECLs are the portion of ECLs that
result from default events that are possible within the 12 months after the reporting date (or a shorter period if the expected life of the instrument is less than 12
months). The maximum period considered when estimating ECLs is the maximum contractual period over which the Company is exposed to credit risk.

Loss allowances for financial assets measured at amortized cost are deducted from the Gross carrying amount of the assets.

The gross carrying amount of a financial asset is written off when the Company has no reasonable expectations of recovering of a financial asset in its entirety
or a portion thereof. The Company individually makes an assessment with respect to the timing and amount of write-off based on whether there is a reasonable
expectation of recovery. The Company expects no significant recovery from the amount written off. However, financial assets that are written off could still be
subject to enforcement activities in order to comply with the Company’s procedures for recovery of amounts due.

Non-Financial Assets

The carrying amounts of the non-financial assets are assessed at each reporting date to ascertain whether there is any indication of impairment. If such
indication exists, the asset's recoverable amount is estimated to determine the extent of impairment loss. An impairment loss is recognized in statement of
profit or loss. The recoverable amount is the higher of an asset's fair value less costs of disposal and value-in-use. Value-in-use is ascertained through
discounting of the estimated future cash flows using a discount rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of money and the risk specific to
the assets. For the purpose of assessing impairment, assets are grouped at the lowest levels for which there are separately identifiable cash flows (cash-
generating units). An impairment loss is reversed if there is a change in the estimates used to determine the recoverable amount. An impairment loss is
reversed only to the extent that asset’s carrying amount does not exceed the carrying amount that would have been determined, net of depreciation or
amortization, if no impairment loss had been recognized.

Provisions

Provisions are recognized when the Company has a legal and constructive obligation as a result of past events, and it is probable that outflow of resources
embodying economic benefits will be required to settie the obligation and a reliable estimate can be made of the amount of obligation. Provisions are reviewed
at each reporting date and adjusted to reflect the correct best estimate.

Dividend to shareholders
Dividend paid to shareholders is recognized in the year in which it is declared,
Segment reporting

Segment information is presented on the same basis as that used for internal reporting purposes by the Chief Operating Decision Maker, who is responsible for
allocating resources and assessing performance of the operating segments. On the basis of its internal reporting structure, the Company considers itself to be
a single reportable segment, however, certain information, as required by the approved accounting standards, is presented in note 41 to these financial
statements.

Contingent labilities

Contingent liability is disclosed when:

- there is a possible obligation that arises from past events and whose existence will be confirmed only by the occurrence or non occurrence of one or more
uncertain future events not wholly within the control of the Company, or

- there is present obligation that arises from past events but it is not probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits will be required to
settle the obligation or the amount of the obligation cannot be measured with sufficient reliability.

Government grants

Government grants are transfers of resources to an entity by a government entity in return for compliance with certain past or future conditions related to the
entity's operating activities - e.g. a government subsidy.

The definition of "government” refers to governments, government agencies and similar bodies, whether local, national or international. The Company
recognizes government grants when there is reasonable assurance that grants will be received and the Company will be able to comply with conditions
associated with grants.

Government grants are recognized at fair value, as deferred income, when there is reasonable assurance that the grants will be received and the Company will
be able to comply with the conditions associated with the grants, Grants that compensate the Company for expenses incurred, are recognized on a systematic
basis in the income for the year in which the related expenses are recognized, Grants that compensate for the cost of an asset are recognized in income on a
systematic basis over the expected useful life of the related asset.

A loan is initially recognized and subsequently measured in accordance with IFRS 8. IFRS 8 requires loans at below-market rates to be initially measured at
their fair value - e.g. the present value of the expected future cash flows discounted at a market-related interest rate. The benefit that is the government grant is
measured as the difference between the fair value of the loan on initial recognition and the amount received, which is accounted for according to the nature of
the grant.
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SHARE CAPITAL 30 June 2022 30 June 2021
--------- Rupees in thousand---=---=-==mau

Authorised share capital

10,000,000 (June 30, 2021: 10,000,000) ordinary shares 100,000 100,000

of Rupees 10 each
Issued, subscribed and paid up share capital

7,500,000 (June 30, 2021: 7,500.000) ordinary shares of
Rupeeas 10 each issued as fully paid in cash

-note- 75,000 75,000
75,000 75,000
Ordinary shares of the Company held by iated undertaking as at year end are as follows:
30 June 2022 30 June 2021
(Number of shares)
INA Securities (Private) Limited 403,628 370,000
403,628 370,000
SURPLUS ON REVALUATION OF PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 30 June 2022 30 June 2021
Rug in th vdl
Revaluation surplus -note- 7.1 565,654 336.2(}3“=
Revaluation surplus
Rewvaluation surplus relating to revaluation carried out at June 30, 1990 8,873 B873
Revaluation surplus refating to revaluation carried out at June 09, 2008 69,325 69,325
Revaluation surplus relating to revaluation carried out at April 05, 2012 85,936 85,936
Revaluation surplus relating to revaluation carried out at April 26, 2016 114,780 114,780
Revaluation surplus relating to revaluation carried out at May 15, 2019 57,348 57,348
Revaluation surplus relating to revaluation carried out at May 12, 2022 229,392 -
565,654 336,262

The Company had revalued its freehold land on June 30, 1990, June 09, 2008, April 05, 2012, April 26, 2016, May 15, 2019 and May 12, 2022, The
revaluation was carried out by independent valuers Mr. Anwar ul Hag in 1990 and M/S Hamid Mukhtar & Co. in 2008, 2012, 2016, 2019 and 2022
respectively to replace the carrying amount of land with local market values. The following aggregated net appraisal surplus arisen on the
revaluation on June 30, 1990, June 09, 2008, April 05, 2012, April 26, 2016 , May 15, 2019 and May 12, 2022 was credited to surplus on revaluation
of property, plant and equipment.

Book value Re-valued amount SUEILG ery
revaluation
I Rup inth d
Freehold land 7,826 573,480 565,654
7,826 573,480 565,654

Since the revaluation relate to freehold land which is a non-depreciable asset, no deferred tax liability arises on revaluation, In the absence of
depreciable amount no incremental depreciation net off deferred tax transferred to unappropriated profit nor any disclosure regarding these have
been made in the above note.

30 June 2022 30 June 2021

SPONSOR’S LOAN — RELATED PARTY 82,500 -

This represents a new loan received during the year from the Chief Executive of the Company to meet the working capital requirements. This loan is
unsecured, interest free and repayable at the discretion of the Company. In the light of guidance provided in the Technical Release — 32 (Accounting
Directors' Loan) issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of Pakistan, this loan has been classified as part of equity.

30 June 2022 30 June 2021

LONG TERM FINANCE - SECURED Rup inth d
Bank Al Habib Limited -note- ¢.1 5,894 17,327
Summit Bank Limited -note- 14.7 & 14.9 9,561 19,475
Current portion shown under current liabilities (15,555 (20,434)

- 16,368
Deferred Income-Gavernment Grant 56 ‘ | 823
Current portion shown under current liabilities (56) (766)

“ 57

- 16,425

The Company obtained approval of tarm finance facility for Rs. 24,227 million from Bank Al Habib Limited under Refinancing Schema of the State
Bank of Pakistan specifically for paying salaries and wages o Company’s employees. These are repayable in 8 equal guarterly Installments during
the period from January 2021 to December 2022,

This term loan is secured by way of 1st. Pari Pasu charge of Rs. 180 million over all current assets of the Company already registered with SECP.
Equitable mortgage supported by Ist. Pari Pasu charge for Rs, 250 million over land, building and plant & machinery of the Company situated at 19
K.M G.T Road, Kala Shah Kaku. Equitable mortgage for Rs. 50 million over 24 kanal and 6 marla of Company land situated at 18 K.M G.T Road,
Kala Shah Kaku. Personal Gurantee of three directors / shareholders for Rs 250 million each. The rate of markup is fixed at 3% per annum.

Government grant aggregating to Rs. 2.401 million has been recorded up to June 30, 2021. Grant amortized during the year ended June 30, 2022 is
Rs.0.766 million (June 30, 2021: Rs. 1.502 million) thereby making the aggregate amortization up to June 30, 2022 Rs. 2.345 million. In accordance
with the terms of the grant, the company is prohibited to lay-off the employees atleast for three maonths from the period of the grant.

50



Leiner Pak Gelatine Ltd.

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2022

101

10.2

121

12.2

12.3

Lease liabilities

30 June 2022

2021-2022

30 June 2021

Rupees in thousand----=-=-c=r-- i

Present value of minimum lease payments 14,427 11,193
Less: current portion presented under current liabilities -note- 10.2 2,698 4,240
11,729 6,953

Where the implicit rate is available in the lease contract, that has been used which is 3 months KIBOR plus 1.75 % per annum in case of vehicle
leased from Bank Al-Habib Limited. In case of Right-of use asset for the office building the Company’s incremental borrowing rate 15.72% is used.

Future minimum payments and their present values are regrouped as under:

— --Rupees i
2022 2021
more than one year more than one year
Over one year but less than five Over one year but less than five
years years
Total minimum lease payments 4,365 13,972 5.067 T7.917
Less ; Finance charges {1,667) (2,243) (827} (9654)
Present value of minimum lease payments 2,52& 11,72_9 4,240 6,953

30 June 2022 30 June 2021

DEFERRED TAXATION e it et Rupees in thousand--—-—sr-rw-mm

Deferred tax on temporary differences comprises of
Taxable temporary differences

Accelerated tax depreciation 10,964 15,839
Right-of-use assets 2,426 2,171
13,390 18,010
Deductible temporary differences
Minimum tax credits 10,097 15,687
Lease liabilities 2,622 2,323
671 =
Opening Balnce as at July 1 - -
Add: Charged to profit or loss 671 -
Closing Balnce as at June 30 671 -

The minimum tax credits under section 113 of Income Tax Ordinance 2001 are available for carry forward and adjustment against tax liability for 3
years succeeding the tax year for which the respective minimum tax was paid. The minimum tax credits lapsed during the year ended June 30, 2022
baing, barred by time amount to Rs, 12 889,776 (June 30, 2021: Rs. 3,866,661).

30 June 2022 30 June 2021

TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES s Rupees in thousand-----uccaeae -

Creditors 231,695 233,471
Accrued liabilities -note- 121 63,266 53,060
Contract liabilities -note- 12.2 276,521 117,793
Payabie to provident fund ~note- 43.3 688 811
Other payabla 71 30
Income tax withheld payable 26 26
Workers' Profit Participation Fund -note- 12.3 3,853 3,375
Waorkers' Waealfare Fund 1,607 #24

577,727 409,390

This includes salaries payable to Kh. Imtiaz Ahmed- Chief Executive and Ibrar Ahmad Kh, Executive director as at June 30, 2022 Rs. 8.4 millions
(June 30, 2021: Rs. 7.5 millions) and Rs.6.8 million (June 30, 2021: Rs. 5.8 milllons) respectively.

Contract liabilities represent unsecured advances from customers for the supply of goods by the Company during the period of ene year from the
raporting date. Such advances as at June 30, 2021 amounting to Rs. 117.793 million have been recognized in the revenue for the year ended June
30, 2022,

Waorkers' Profit Participation Fund (WPPF)

Balance at beginning of the year 3,375 2.357

Interest on funds utilized in Company's

business -note- 33 488 229

Allocation/expense for the year -hote- 32 1,179 1.004
5,042 3,580

Less: paid to the fund during the year 1,189 215
3,853 3,375

s
Interest is paid at prescribed rate under the Companies Profits (Workers' Parlicipation) Act, 1968 on funds utilized by the Company lill the date of
allocation to workers,

MARK-UP ACCRUED 30 June 2022 30 June 2021
ssesseseeeeeee--Rupees in thousand--—--—eaeeeeee
Onb gs from barki i ed
Lease liabilities 198 13
Long term finance - secured 56 140
Short term borrowings 4,610 3.258
4,865 3.411
4o
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30 June 2022 30 June 2021
R d

P in thous
14 SHORT TERM BORROWINGS
From banking parni ed
Export Refinance
Bank Al-Habib Limited -note- 14.1, 14.8 75,000 50,000
SBF Export Finance -note- 14.2, 14.8 49,401 =
Bank Al-Habib Limited
Short Term Finance against payables
Bank Al-Habib Limited -note- 14.4, 14.8 = 25,000
Short Term Finance against IBP receivables
Bank Al-Habib Limited -note- 14.5, 14.8 25,000 25,000
Running finance
Bank Al-Habib Limited -note- 146, 14.8 59,843 58,661
Running finance
Summit Bank Limited -note- 14.7, 14.9 - -
209,244 158,661
From related parties-unsecured
Loans from director and close relative thereof -note- 1412 54,828 111,166
264,072 269,827

14.1 The finance against packing credit (FAPC) facility having sanctioned limit of Rupees 75 million (June 30, 2021: Rupees 50 million ) including one-off
FAPC facility Rupees 25 million (June 30, 2021: Rupees 25 million ) has been obtained from Bank Al-Habib Limited the increase of Rs 25 million in
regular sanstioned limit has be made by blocking the utilization of FAFB-OWN limit of Rs, 25 million as mentioned in note 14.3 below. The rate of
mark-up on this facility is three months KIBOR plus 1.75% per annum . The principle is to be repaid upon realization of exports proceeds as per the
tenor of respective bill but not later than 120 days from the draw down date or on demand while mark-up is to be serviced upon adjustment of loan or
at the end of each calandar quarter whichever is earlier. The facility is valid till February 07, 2024 with credit review on annual basis.

14.2  The finance against SBP export finance scheme-EFS facility having sanctioned limit of Rupees 50 million (June 30, 2021: Rupees nil ) has been
abtained from Bank Al-Habib Limited under SBP IH&ASMEFD Circular No. 03 of 2022, The rate of mark-up on this facility is State Bank of Pakistan
("SBP") refinance rate ("RR") under the scheme, SBP Refinance Rate applicable time to time (as per tenor of the bill) plus bank spread, combinedly
called the ("Applicable Rate"). The principle is to be repaid upon realization of exports proceeds within maximun 180 days from the draw down date
or on demand. The facility is valid till February 07, 2024 with credit review on annual basis.

14.3  The finance against foreign bills (FAFB-OWN) facility having sanctioned limit of Rupees 25 million {June 30, 2021; Rupees 25 millien) has been
obtained from Bank Al-Habib Limited for working capital requirements, The rate of mark-up on this facility is three months KIBOR plus 1.75% per
annum . The principle is to be repaid upon realization of exports proceeds as per the tenor of respective bill but not later than 180 days from the draw
down date or on demand while mark-up is to be served upon adjustment of loan or at the end of each calendar quarter whichever is earlier. The
facility has not been utilized upto June 30, 2022 because the sanctioned limit has temporarily been blocked to increase the sanctioned limit as
mantionad in 14.1 above.

14.4  The short term finance facility having sanctionad limit of Rupees 25 million (June 30, 2021; Rupees 25 million) has been obtainad from Bank Al-Habib
Limited for purchase of raw material. It carries mark-up at three months KIBOR plus 1.75% (June 30, 2021: three months KIBOR plus 1.75%) per
annum payable quarterly. The principle amount is to be repaid in 90 days through business cash flows. The facility is valid till February 07, 2024 with
credit review on annual basis. The facility has not been utilized on June 30, 2022,

14.5 The IBP receivable finance facility having sanctioned limit of Rupees 25 million {June 30, 2021: Rupees 25 million) has been obtained from Bank Al-
Habib Limited for financing of receivables. It carries mark-up at three months KIBOR plus 1.75% (June 30, 2021 three months KIBOR plus 1.75%)
par annum. The principal amount is to be repaid upon realization of export proceeds as per tenor of respective bill but not later than 90 days from
draw down date or on demand while mark-up is to be serviced upon adjustment of each loan or at the end of each calendar quarter whichaver is
earlier. The facility is valid till February 07, 2024 with credit review on annual basis,

14.6 The running finance facility having sanctioned limit of Rupees 80 milllon (June 30, 2021: Rupees 60 million ) has been oblained from Bank Al-Hablb
Limited for working capital requirements. It carries mark-up at three months KIBOR plus 1.75% (June 30, 2021 three months KIBOR plus 1.75%) per
annum payabile quarterly, The facility is valid till February 07, 2024 with credit review on annual basis,

14.7 The running finance facility having sanctioned limit of Rupees 30 million (June 30, 2021: Rupees 30 million) was obtained from Summit Bank Limited
for working capital requirements, The facility was not renewed after September 2018. In terms of settlement with Summit Bank Limited dated March
15, 2021, the outstanding balance on the said date Rs. 29,981,093 was payable as under:

= repayment of 35%, equal te Rs. 10,500,000 In four equal instalment of Rs 2,625,000 each batwean the period from 15 March 2021 to 30 April
2021,

-after a 6 months grace period from May 2021 to October 2021 the remaining 65% loan facilty is payable in 15 equal monthly instalment of Rs
1.300,000 each up to 25 January 2023,

-the said loan was accordingly clasified as long term as per note 9 above.

14.8  The facilities mentioned in 14,1, 14.2, 143 , 144 14,5 and 14.6 are commonly secured against first charge of Rupees 280 million (June 2021:
Rupees 180 million) over current assets of the Company registered with SECP, Equitable maortgage supported by first pari passu charge on fixed
assets of Rupees 250 million (June 30, 2021 Rupees 250 million) comprising land, building, plant and machinery situated at 19 KM G.T. Read Kala
Shah Kaku. Lien over export documents under letter of credit and contract, shipping documents, accepted drafts, counter guarantee of the Company
and parsonal guarantees of three Directors / Shareholders amounting to Rupees 250 milllon each (Jupe 30, 2021 Rupees 250 million). The running
finance facility at note 14.6 in addition to securities aforesaid is also secured against pro note amounting to Rs. 59.5 million (June 2021 : Rupees
144.5 million),

14.9 The facility mentioned in 14.7 is commonly secured against ranking charge of Rupees 40 milllon (June 30, 2021: Rupees 40 million) over all present
& future current assets of the Company with 25% margin, duly insured, with Summit Bank Limited and registered with SECP, Pari passu charge on
fixed assets, comprising land, building. plant and machinery situated at 19 KM G.T. Road Kala Shah Kaku, Personal guarantees of thres Directors
along with Personal Net Worth Statement (PNWS), It carries mark-up at three months KIBOR plus 5%.
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1410 As at June 30, 2022 the Company has facilities from Bank Al-Habib Limited relating to import letters of credit (sight/'usance) amounting to Rupees
17.5 million {June 30, 2021: Rupees 5 million). Additionally, Company has letter of guarantee facility amounting to Rupees 15 million (June 30, 2021:
Rupees 15 million) from Bank Al-Habib Limited.

14,11 The net aggregate short term borrowing facilities unavailed at end of June 30, 2022 amount to Rupees 25.76 million (June 30, 2021: Rupees 26.339
million) and for letters of credit and bank guarantees amount to Rupees 7.361 million (June 30, 2021: Rupees 8.744 million).

1412 The loans from Chief Executive / direclor (Khwaja Imtiaz Ahmed) and his close relative (Khwaja Ahmed Hassan) amounting to Rs, 15,750 million
(June 30, 2021: 79.314 million) and Rs. 39,078 million (June 30, 2021: 31.851 million) respectively, are for working capital requirments. These loans
are re-payable on demand and non-interest bearing.

15 CONTINGENCIES AND COMMITMENTS

15.1  Contingencies

15.1.1  The Pakistan Environmental Protection Agency has filed a complaint against the Company before the Environmental Protection Tribunal on Mach
25,2005 on account of Company's failure to properly dispose effluent water discharge during the production. The agency regards this to be a criminal
offerice. The Company has filed a writ petition against the Agency's claim before the Honourable Lahore High Court ("LHC") on April 8,2005. The

Company has not recognized any liability in this regard since it awaits the decision of LHC which is pending. As per Legal Counsel of the Company it
is anticipated that the Company, has a fair chance of success. In this context, therefore, no adverse results can be contemplated.

15.1.2 Guarantees issued by bank on behalf of Company as at June 30, 2022 amounting to Rupees 11.256 million (June 30, 2021: Rupees 11.256 million).

152 Commitments

Letters of Credit outstanding for other than capital expenditure from Bank-al-Habib Limited as at June 30, 2022 Rupees 13.883 million (June 30,
2021: Rupees nil)
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18 LONG TERM DEPOSITS 30 June 2022 30 June 2021
sesmmsmssasmmnns| Rupees in thousand--------===--=--
Security deposits 3,359 1,799
Less: Current portion shown under current assets -note- 23 254 -
3,105 1,799
30 June 2022 30 June 2021
19 STORES, SPARE PARTS AND LOOSE TOOLS memmmmmenaamana] Rupees in thousand----=-=eea---. -
Stores, spare parts and loose tools 105,968 107,087
Packing material 941 1,124
106,909 108.211

19.1  Itis impracticable to distinguish stores, spare parts and loose tools, each from the other.
19.2  Stores, spare parts and loose tools are generally held for internal use only.
19.3  Noitem of stores, spare parts and loose tools is pledged as security as at the reporting date.

20 STOCK-IN-TRADE 30 June 2022 30 June 2021
mmmmmennmnne] Rupees in thousand--------=----- =

Raw material 584,617 355,090
Raw material-in-transit 15 -
Work in process 51,386 -

Finished goods:

Gelatine 13,889 34,047

Ossein dried . 41,954

By-product Di-calcium Phosphate (DCP) -note- 20.1 319 29

14,208 76,030

650,226 431,120

20.1  The entire stock of by-product di-calcium phosphate is carried at net realizable value.
20.2  No item of stock-in-trade is pledged as security as at the reporting date.

21 TRADE DEBTS

Considered good:
Unsecured -Local 8,055 8,622
Unsecured -Foreign 14,254

22,309 8,622
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30 June 2022 30 June 2021
22 ADVANCES masmmmmamanane: --Rupees in thousand-----====--s-=--
Considered good:
Advances:
To staff - secured -note- 22.1 1,118 1,257
To suppliers - unsecured 1,010 1,074
2,128 2,331

221 These are amounts advanced to staff against future salaries and retirement benefits and are in accordance with Company policy and are
interest-free. None of the advances related to executives and directors.

30 June 2022 30 June 2021
23 TRADE DEPOSITS AND SHORT TERM PREPAYMENTS = ceeeeececeeees ~-Rupees in thousand---ses-sesemeeee
Current portion of long term deposits -note- 18 254 -
Prepayments 1,154 686
1,408 686
24 OTHER RECEIVABLES
Sales tax refundable -note- 24.1 28,980 26,737
Other receivables - unsecured, considered good - -
28,980 26,737
24.1  This represents excess of input tax on purchases over sales tax payable.
25 ADVANCE INCOME TAX-NET
Advance income tax 55,586 52,799
Less: Adjustment for provision for taxation -note- 34 (11,372) (12,470)
Advance income tax at the end of the year 44,214 40,329
26 CASH AND BANK BALANCES
With banks:
on current accounts;
Local currency 12 a71
Cash in hand 2,159 3,630
2,271 4,601
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27 SALES - NET 30 June 2022 30 June 2021
ammmesmmmmeaas| Rupees in thousand--------====-===
Export sales -note- 27.1 455,209 368,639
Local sales -hote- 27.2 557,184 572,876
1,012,393 941,515
271 Export sales
Gelatine 389,887 368,639
Ossein dried 65,322 -
455,209 368,639
27.2 Local sales
Gelatine 347,096 409,794
Di-Calcium Phosphate, by-product 273,971 208,712
621,067 618,506
Less: sales tax 63,883 ‘ , 45,630
trade discounts - -
63,883 45,630
557,184 572,876
28 COST OF SALES
Raw material consumed -note- 28.1 426,351 463,744
Semi - finished product purchased 17,995 2,450
Stores, spare parts and loose tools consumed 40,638 22,062
Packing material consumed 6,326 6,369
Salaries, wages and benefits -note- 28.2 82,030 84,142
Fuel and power 219,878 213,203
Factory overheads -note- 28.3 63,806 60,294
857,024 852,264
Add: opening work in process | . 48,013
Less: closing wark in process 51,386 =
(51,386) 48,013
Cost of goods manufactured 805,638 900,277
Add: opening stock of finished goods | 76,030 ‘ ’ 12,383
Less: closing stock of finished goods 14,208 76,030
61,822 (63,647)
B67,460 836,630
28.1 Raw material consumed
Opening stock 355,090 248,160
Purchases 655,878 570,674
1,010,968 818,834
Less: closing stock 584,617 355,090
426,351 463,744
28,2 Salaries, wages and benefits include employer's contribution to recognised provident fund amounting to Rupees 2,349,241 (June 30, 2021:
Rupees 2,460,209).
28.3 Factory overheads 30 June 2022 30 June 2021
------------ Rupees in thousand--------===--een
Indirect labour wages 11,816 16,370
Insurance 1,136 2,304
Medical expenses 32 82
Repair and maintenance 22,929 8,945
Depreciation -note- 16.3 16,360 14,610
Loading and unloading 3,975 4,489
Apportionment of sales tax -hote- 28.4 5,320 8,847
Miscellaneous expenses 2,238 4,647
63,806 60,294

28.4 This represents related input tax on supplies exempt under sixth schedule of the Sales Tax Act, 1990,
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29

30

AN

311

31.2

32

OTHER INCOME

Income from financial instruments:

Foreign exchange gain - net
Amortization of government grant
Misc Income

Income from non-financial assets:

Gain on disposal of fixed asset

DISTRIBUTION COST

Shipping expenses
Commission on exports
Other expenses

ADMINISTRATIVE EXPENSES

Salaries, wages and benefits
Insurance

Vehicle running and maintenance
Rent, rates and taxes
Travelling and conveyance
Legal and professional charges
Printing and stationery

Fees and subscription
Telephone and postage

Repair and maintenance
Auditors’ remuneration
Entertainment

Utilities

Depreciation

Amortisation

Security expenses
Miscellaneous expenses

-note- 31.1

-note- 31.2

-note- 16.3
-note- 17

2021-2022

30 June 2022 30 June 2021
---------- --Rupees in thousand----s-=sceaeean

1,638 567
766 1,502

- 972
2,239 378
4,643 3.419
22,215 5617
720 1,525
7,285 3,058
30,220 10,200
33,869 30,780
911 357
9,845 6,516
2,444 1,114
543 585
302 495
931 647
2,490 914
992 832
472 377
967 916
2,873 810
1,133 769
5519 3,306
2,785 2,783
744 432
66,820 51,633

Salaries, wages and benefits include employer's contribution to recognised provident fund amounting to Rupees 1,026,997 (June 30, 2021:

Rupees 972,668),

Auditors’ remuneration

Audit fee

Fee for half yearly limited review of Financial information

Special reports and certifications
Out of pocket expenses

OTHER OPERATING EXPENSES

Workers' Profit Participation Fund

Workers' Welfare Fund -Current Year
Workers' Welfare Fund -Prior Years

Donations

-note- 12.3

-note- 32.1

30 June 2022 30 June 2021
------------- Rupees in thousand-----=--==-eeax

730 700

154 140

66 60

17 16

967 916

1,179 1,004

783 595

- 171

176 35

2,138 1,805

32.1 None of the directors or their spouses had any interest in the donees in respect of donations made by the Company.
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33 FINANCE COST

Mark-upfinterest on:
Short term borrowings
Long term finance
Workers' Profit Participation Fund
Lease liabilities
Bank charges and commission

34 TAXATION

Current-for the year
-for prior years

Deferred-current year
- effect of change in tax rate

30 June 2022

2021-2022

30 June 2021

| Rupees in thousand-------------—-

20,822 20,678
3,036 2,106
-note- 12.3 488 229
1,388 864
3,542 2,541
29,276 26,418
11,372 ‘ \ 12,470
803 774
12,175 13,244
671 >
671 =
12,846 13,244

34.1 The provision for current taxation has been made on minimum tax under Section 113 and Section 154 for income from export sales under fixed
tax regime of Income Tax Ordinance, 2001. Therefore, a numeric tax rate reconciliation has not been included in these financial statements.

34.2 The Income Tax assessments of the Company are complete upto tax year 2021, as deemed assessments in terms of Section 120(1) of the
Income Tax Ordinance, 2001 (The Ordinance) as per income tax returns of the Company.

34.3 Finance Act 2019 has fixed the corporate tax rate for Companies at 29% for current as well as future tax years. Deferred tax has been
measured at the rates that are expected to be applied to the temporary differences when those are expected to reverse based on the rates

enacted or substantively enacted by the reporting date.

35 EARNING PER SHARE - BASIC AND DILUTED

There was no dilutive effect on basic earnings per share

of the Company which is based on:

Profit after taxation attributable to ordinary
shareholders of the Company

Weighted average number of ordinary shares
outstanding during the year

Earning per share
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30 June 2022 30 June 2021
---------------- Rupees in thousand----=-eseueeeen
8,276 5,004
No, of shares 7,500 7,500
Rupees 1.10 0.67
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36

36.1

CASH GENERATED FROM OPERATIONS
Profit before taxation

Adjustments for:

Depreciation

Amaortisation

Provision for employee retirement benefits
Finance cost

Provision for Workers' Profit Participation Fund
Provision for Workers' Welfare Fund

Government grant recognised as income

Gain on disposal of property, plant and equipment

Operating profit before changes in working capital
Changes in working capital

(Increase)/decrease in current assets:

Stores, spare parts and loose tools

Stock-in-trade

Trade debts

Advances

Trade deposits and short term prepayments

Other receivables

Increase/(decrease) in current liabilities:

Trade and other payables

30 June 2022

2021-2022

30 June 2021

21,122 18,248
21,879 17.916
3,376 3.433
29,276 26,418
1,179 1,004
783 766
(766) (1.502)
(2,239) (378)
53,488 47,657
74,610 65,905
1,302 6,157
(219,106) (122,564)
(13,687) (1.145)
203 (977)
(468) 853
163,937 152,162
6,791 100,391

Reconcilition of movement of liabilities to cashflows arising from financing activities

From banking companies-secured

Long term finance - secured
Bank Al Habib Limited
Term Loan - Summit Bank Limited

Deferred Income-Govt. Grant

Running Finance
Bank-al-Habib Limited

Short Term Finance against payables
Bank-al-Habib Limited

Short Term Finance against IBP receivables
Bank-al-Habib Limited

Export Refinance
Bank-al-Habib Limited

SBP Export Finance
Bank-al-Habib Limited

From related parties-unsecured

Loans from director and close relative thereof

Sponsor's Loan — Related Party

Net
(decrease) /

June 30, 2021
Increase due

to cash
---------- ~Rupees in thousand--=ssseseeceeen

17,327 (11,333)

19,475 (9,914)

823 (T67)
37,625 22,014
58,661 1,182

25,000 (25,000)
25,000 -
50,000 25,000
- 49,401
158,661 50,583

111,166 (56,338)

269,827 (5,755)
- 82,500

307,452
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54,731

June 30, 2022

5,994
9,561

56
15,611

59,843

25,000

75,000

49,401

209,244

54,828

264,072

82,500

362,183
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30 June 2022 30 June 2021
| Rupees in thousand----------- --e-
37 CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

Cash and bank balances -note- 26 2271 4,601

38 JUDGEMENTS, ESTIMATES AND ASSUMPTIONS
38.1 Depreciation / amortisation methods, rates and useful lives

The management of the Company reassesses useful lives, depreciation method and rates for each item of property, plant and equipment and
intangible assets annually by considering expected pattern of economic benefits that the Company expects to derive from that item.

38.2 Recoverable amounts of assets / cash generating units

The management of the Company reviews carrying amounts of its assets and cash generating units for possible impairment and makes formal
estimates of recoverable amounts if there is any such indication.

38.3 Taxation

The Company takes into account the current income tax law and decisions taken by appellate authorities. Instances where the Company's
view differs from the view taken by the income tax department at the assessment stage and where the Company considers that its view on
items of material nature is in accordance with law, the amounts are shown as contingent liabilities.

38.4 Provisions
Provisions are based on best estimate of the expenditure required to settle the present obligation at the reporting date, that is, the amount that
the Company would rationally pay to settle the obligation at the reporting date or to transfer it to a third party.

38.5 Revaluation of freehold land

Revaluation of freehold land is carried out by independent professional valuers. Revalued amounts are determined by the reference to local
market values.

38.6 Stock in trade/ Stores, spare parts & Loose tools

Management has made estimates for realizable amount of slow moving and obsolete stocks, stores, spare parts & Loose tools items to
determine provision for slow moving and obsolete items. Any future change in the estimated realizable amounts might affect carrying amount
of stocks, stores, spare parts & Loose tools with corresponding effect on amounts recognized in statement of profit or loss as provision /
reversal,

38.7 Impairment of financial assets

The management makes judgments for estimating the allowances for Expected Credit Losses (ECLs) in respect of financial assets measured
at amortized cost,

38.8 Leases

The management uses judgments for recognition of leases under IFRS 16 and the related practical expedients thereunder,
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39

391

39.2

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
30 June 2022 30 June 2021
Financial instruments -===eeee-RUpees in thousand-~--=--~

The following are financial instruments by category:

Financial assets at amortized cost

Security deposits 1 1
Trade debts 22,309 8,622
Advances 1,118 1,257
Cash and bank balances 2,271 4,601

25,699 14,481

Financial liabilities at amortized cost

Lease liabilities 14,427 11,193
Long term finance 15,611 37,625
Short term borrowings 264,072 269,827
Mark up accrued 4,865 3411
Trade and other payables 295 286,587
Unclaimed dividend 771 771

300,041 609414

The Company's activities expose it to a variety of financial risks including effects of changes in foreign exchange rates, market interest rates,
credit and liquidity risks associated with various financial assets and liabilities. The Board of Directors of the Company has overall
responsibility for the establishment and oversight of the Company's risk management framework.

Credit risk

Credit risk is the risk of financial loss to the Company if a customer or counterparty to a financial instrument fails to meet its contractual
obligations. The carrying amounts of the financial assets represent the maximum credit exposure. The maximum exposure to credit risk at
the reporting date is as under:

30 June 2022 30 June 2021

--------- Rupees in thousand---------
Security deposits 1 1
Trade debts 22,309 8,622
Advances 1,118 1,257
Bank balances 112 971
23,540 10,851

The maximum exposure to credit risk for trade debts amounting to Rupees 22.309 million (June 30, 2021: Rupees 8.622 million) at the
reporting date by geographic region is as under:

30 June 2022 30 June 2021

--------- Rupees in thousand---ssa-s
Domestic 8,055 8,622
Export 14,254 -
22,309 8,622

The export debtor of the Company is situated in Malaysia.

The maximum exposure to credit risk for trade debts amounting to Rupees 22.309 million (June 30, 2021: Rupees 8.622 million) at the
reporting date by type of customer is as under:

30 June 2022 30 June 2021

--------- Rupees in thousand---------
Wholesaler / distributor - -
End user customers 22,309 8,622
22,309 8,622
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The aging of trade debts at the reporting date is as under:
30 June 2022 30 June 2021
| Rupees in thousand---------

Mot past due 14,414 921
Past due 1-30 days 80 7,539
Past due 31-120 days 185 162
Past due 121-365 days - 3]
More than one year 7,630 -
22,309 8,622

The Company continuously monitors the credit exposure towards the customers and makes provisions against those balances considered
doubtful of recovery. The Company manages credit risk by limiting significant exposure to individual customers and obtaining advances
against sales. Based on (i) historic record (ii) subsequent recoveries and (jii) confirmation of balnce /acceptance of liability by customer, the
Company believes that no impairment allowance is necessary in respect of trade debts past due amounts. Further, bank balances are held
only with reputable banks with high quality credit ratings. The short term and long term credit ratings as determined by PACRA and JCR-VIS
are as follows:

Rating 30 June 2022 30 June 2021
Short term Long term Agency ---------Rupees in thousand---------

Banks
Mational Bank of Pakistan Al+ AAA PACRA 2 4
Bank Alfalah Limited Al+ AA+ PACRA 8 14
Bank Al - Habib Limited Al+ AAA PACRA 90 916
MCB Bank Limited Al+ AAA PACRA 8 8
United Bank Limited A-1+ AAA JCR - VIS 2 27
Bank Islami Pakistan Limited A1 A+ PACRA 2 2
112 971

39.3 Liquidity risk

Liquidity risk is the risk that the Company will not be able to meet its financial obligations as they fall due. The Company closely monitors its
liquidity and cash flow position. This includes maintenance of financial position liquidity ratios, debtors and creditors concentration both in
terms of overall funding mix and avoidance of undue reliance on large individual customer. The following are contractual maturities of
financial liabilities, including interest payments and excluding the impact of netting agreements.

Carrying Contractual & months Glo12 2105 More than

amount cash flows or less months years 5 years
Lease liabilities 14,427 18,337 2,297 2,068 13,972 -
Long term finance 15,611 16,137 14,821 1,316 - -
Short term borrowings 264,072 269,948 270 - - -
Mark up accrued 4,865 5 5 = " ]
Trade and other payables 295 285 295 - - -
Unclaimed dividend 771 771 771 - - -
Rupees 2022 300,041 305,493 18,459 3,384 13,972 -
Lease liabilities 11,193 12,984 2,534 2,533 7,917 -
Long term finance 37,625 40,395 10,035 14,803 15,557
Shart term borrowings 269,827 291,037 291,037 - - -
Mark up accrued 3411 3,411 3,411 - - -
Trade and other payables 286,587 286,587 286,587 - - -
Unclaimed dividend 771 771 771 - - 3
Rupees 2021 609,414 635,185 594,375 17,336 23,474 -

The contractual cash flows relating to the above financial liabilities have been determined on the basis of mark up rates effective as at 30
June, The rates of mark up have been disclosed in notes 9,10.1,14.1,14.2,14.3,14.4 145,146 & 14.9 to these financial statements.
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39.4 Market risk

Market risk is the risk that the value of the financial instrument may fluctuate as a result of changes in market interest rates or the market
price due to change in credit rating of the issuer or the instrument, change in market sentiments, speculative activities, supply and demand of
securities and the liguidity in the market. The Company is exposed to currency risk and interest rate risk only.

39.4.1 Currency risk

The Company is exposed to currency risk on trade debts Rupees 14.254 million (June 30, 2021: Rupees nil ) and contract liabilities Rupees
0.376 million (June 30, 2021: Rupees 18.810 million ) that are denominated in a currency other than the functional currency of the Company.
The Aggregate exposure of statement of financial position to currency risk works out to be Rupees 13.877 million (June 30, 2021: Rupees
18.810 million). The currency in which these transactions primarily denominated is US Dollar.

I Average rates | [ Reporting date rate |
| 2022 | 2021 | | 2022 | 2021 |
Significant exchange rates applied during the year:
Us Dollar 177.80 160.20 204.16 157.13

Sensitivity analysis

A 10 percent strengthening of the Rupee against above mentioned currency at 30 June would have decreased profit for the year by Rupees
1.387 million ( June 30, 2021: Rupees 1.881 million} mainly as a result of net foreign exchange gain on translation of foreign currency
contract liabilities. The analysis assumes that all other variables remain constant. A 10 percent weakening of the Rupee against above
currencies at 30 June would have had the equal but opposite effect on the profit or loss, on the basis that all other variables remain constant,

39.4.2 Interest rate risk

Interest rate risk is the risk that the fair value or the future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes in market
interest rates. Majority of the interest rate exposure arises from short term borrowings from banks. At the reporting date, the interest rate
profile of the Company's variable interest bearing financial instruments is given balow:

The variable rate financial liabilities as at June 30, 2022 aggregated to Rupees 233.233 million (June 30, 2021: 186.349 million) and fixed
rate liabilities aggregated to Rupees 6.050 million (June 30, 2021: 21.131 million). The Company does not account for fixed rate financial
assels at fair value through profit and loss. Therefore, a change in interest rates at the reporting date would not affect the statement of profit
or loss and the equity of the Company. A change of 100 basis points in interest rates at the reporting date would have (decreased) /
increased the loss / profit for the year by the amounts shown below. The analysis assumes that all other variables, in particular foreign
currency rates, remain constant. The analysis is performed on the same basis for 2022.

Profit & loss
100 bp 100 bp
increase decrease
-===-=-=-Rupees in thousand-----

As at June 30, 2022

Cash flow sensitivity - variable rate instruments (316) 316

As at June 30, 2021

Cash flow sensitivity - variable rate instruments (136) 136
39.5 Fair Value of Financial Instruments

Fair Value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between market
participants at the measurement date.

A financial Instrument is regarded as quoted in an active market if quoted prices are readily and regularly available from an exchange dealer,
broker, industry group, pricing service or regulatory agency, and those prices represent actual and regularly occurring market transactions on
an arm's length basis.

The Company classifies fair value measurements and fair value hierarchy that reflects the significance of the inputs used in making the
measurements of fair value. Fair value hierarchy has the following levels:

- Level 1: Quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or liabilities.

- Level 2: Inputs other than quoted prices included within level 1 thal are observable for the asset or liability either directly (i.e.
as prices), or indirectly (i.e. derived from prices).
- Level 3: Inputs for the asset or liability that are not based on observable market data (i.e. unadjusted) inputs.
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Transfer between levels of the fair value hierarchy are recognized at the end of the reporting period during which the changes have occurred.

The carrying values of all financial assets and liabilities reflected in the financial statements approximate their fair values,

39.6 Fair value T t — non-fi ial t.
(i) Fair value hierarchy
Judgments and estimates are made for non-financial assets that are measured at fair value in these financial statements. To provide an
indication of the reliability of the inputs used in determining fair value, the Company has classified its non-financial assets into following three
levels:
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
Rupees (000) | Rupees (000) | Rupees {(000) | Rupees (000)
As at June 30, 2022
Freehold land - 573,480 - 573,480
As at June 30, 2021
Freehold land - 344,088 - 344,088
(ii) Valuation techniques used in determining level 2 fair value
The Company obtains independent valuations of its freehold land at revalued amounts every three to five years. The best evidence of fair
value of freehold land is current prices in an active market for similar lands.
{iii) Valuation process
The Company engages external, independent and qualified valuers to determine the fair value as detailed in note 7.2 of the financial
statements.
40  Capital risk management
The Company's prime objective when managing capital is to safeguard its ability to continue as a going concern in order to provide adequate
returns for shareholders and benefits for other stakeholders and to maintain an optimal capital structure to reduce the cost of capital.
In order to maintain or adjust capital structure, the Company may adjust the amount of dividends paid to shareholders, issue new shares or
sell assets to reduce debts.
Consistent with others in industry, the Company monitors capital on the basis of gearing ratio. The ratio is calculated as net debt divided by
total capital. Net debt represents total of long term financing, lease liabilities and short term borrowings less cash and bank balances. Total
capital is calculated as equity shown in statement of financial position plus net debt. There were no major changes in the Company's
management during the year and the Company is not subject to externally imposed capital requirement.
30 June 2022 30 June 2021
~==e=e=-Rupees in thousand---------
Total borrowing 294,110 318,644
Less: Cash and bank balances 2,271 4,601
Met debt 291,839 314,043
Total equity 733,162 412,994
Total capital 1,025,001 i
Gearing ratio 2B.47% 43.19%
41 OPERATING SEGMENTS
41.1 These financial statements have been prepared on the basis of a single reportable segment.
41.2 Sales revenue from gelatine products, occein dried, and di-calcium phosphate (by-product) represent 69.70 %, 6.45% and 23.84% (June 30,
2021: 78.18. %, nil and 21.82%) of the total revenue of the Company respectively.
41.3 Al non-current assets of the Company as at June 30, 2022 are located in Pakistan.
41.4 Sales to external customers Martin Dow Marker Limited, Pakistan is around 17.19% (2021: 18.34%), Cocoaland Industries Malaysia is
around 36.59% (2021: 14.26%) and Nestle Pakistan Limited is around 6.78% (2021: 8.14% ) during the year ended June 30, 2022.
41.5 The sales percentage by geographic region is as follows:

30 June 2022

30 June 2021

%o %o
Pakistan 55.04 67.70
Malaysia 38.51 32.30
China 6.45 0.00
100.00 100.00
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FORM 34
THE COMPANIES ACT, 2017
(Section 227(2)(f))
PATTERN OF SHAREHOLDING
1.1 Name of the Company [LEINER PAK GELATINE LIMITED |
2.1. Pattern of holding of the shares held by the shareholders as at [ 30-06-2022 |
—————— Shareholdings------

2.2 No. of Shareholders From To Total Shares Held
151 1 100 6,950
233 101 500 53,766

45 501 1,000 43,035
120 1,001 5,000 388,080
8 5,001 10,000 63,056
2 10,001 15,000 27,000
2 20,001 25,000 42,500
4 30,001 35,000 130,140
1 35,001 40,000 38,300
4 45,001 50,000 199,280
1 50,001 55,000 52,960
1 55,001 60,000 59,800
2 70,001 75,000 145,000
1 75,001 80,000 75,480
1 80,001 85,000 81,430
1 105,001 110,000 105,680
3 155,001 160,000 479,500
1 160,001 165,000 160,680
2 170,001 175,000 340,600
1 200,001 205,000 202,500
2 210,001 215,000 429,200
1 270,001 275,000 270,300
1 285,001 290,000 286,000
1 300,001 305,000 304,550
1 315,001 320,000 320,000
1 330,001 335,000 330,020
1 335,001 340,000 337,900
1 400,001 405,000 403,628
1 415,001 420,000 419,800
1 750,001 755,000 751,765

1 950,001 955,000 951,100
596 7,500,000
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2.3 Categories of Shareholders

2.3.1 Directors, Chief Executive Officer,
and their spouse and minor children

2.3.2 Associated Companies,
undertakings and related
parties. (Parent Company)

2.3.3 NIT and ICP

2.3.4 Banks Development
Financial Institutions, Non

Banking Financial Institutions.

2.3.5 Insurance Companies

2.3.6 Modarabas and Mutual
Funds

2.3.7 Shareholders holding 10%
or more

2.3.8 General Public
a. Local
b. Foreign

2.3.9 Others (to be specified)
Joint Stock Companies
Pension Funds

Other Companies
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Shares
Held

3,385,815

403,628

25

4,852

1,702,865

3,675,922
0

27,076
2,494
188

2021-2022

Percentage

45.1442%

5.3817%

0.0003%

0.0647%

0.0000%

0.0000%

22.7049%

49.0123%
0.0000%

0.3610%
0.0333%
0.0025%
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LEINER PAK GELATINE LIMITED
Categories of Shareholding required under Code of Corporate Governance (CCG)
As on June 30, 2022

No. of Shares
Sr. No. Name Held Percentage

Associated Companies, Undertakings and Related Parties (Name Wise Detail):
1 INA SECURITIES (PVT) LIMITED. (CDC) 403,628 5.3817%

Mutual Funds (Name Wise Detail) - -

Directors and their Spouse and Minor Children (Name Wise Detail):

1 KH. IMTIAZ AHMED 751,765 10.0235%
2 MRS. AYESHA QASIM 172,200 2.2960%
3 MR. IJAZ AHMED KHAWAJA 304,550 4.0607%
4 MR. RASHID MINHAS 1,000 0.0133%
5 KH. IBRAR AHMED 951,100 12.6813%
6 MR. AHMED ALI RIAZ 74,000 0.9867%
7 SYED RIZWAN HAIDER 500 0.0067%
8 MRS. NAVIDA IMTIAZ W/O KH. IMTIAZ AHMED 657,900 8.7720%
9 MRS. NEELUM NAZ W/O KH. IJAZ AHMED 202,500 2.7000%
10 MRS. NAUSHEEN IBRAR W/O KH. IBRAR AHMED 270,300 3.6040%
Executives: 657,900 8.7720%

Public Sector Companies & Corporations: - -

Banks, Development Finance Institutions, Non Banking Finance 7,346 0.0979%
Companies, Insurance Companies, Takaful, Modarabas and Pension Funds:

Shareholders holding five percent or more voting intrest in the listed company (Name Wise Detail)

1 KH. IBRAR AHMED 951,100 12.6813%
2 KH. IMTIAZ AHMED 751,765 10.0235%
3 KH. AHMED HASSAN 749,820 9.9976%
4 MRS. NAVIDA IMTIAZ W/O KH. IMTIAZ AHMED 657,900 8.7720%
5 INA SECURITIES (PVT) LIMITED. (CDC) 403,628 5.3817%

All trades in the shares of the listed company, carried out by its Directors, Executives and their
spouses and minor children shall also be disclosed:

S.No. NAME SALE PURCHASE
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Form of Proxy

The Company Secretary,
Leiner Pak Gelatine Ltd.
17-G, Gulberg2,
Lahore-54660

ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING
I/ We
of being a member of LEINER PAK GELATINE LIMITED,
holder of Ordinary Shares as per Share Register Folio No.
(No. of Shares)
and/or CDC Participant 1.D. No.
and Sub Account No. hereby appoint
Of
Or failing him of

as my/our proxy to vote for me /us and on my / our behalf at the Annual General Meeting of the Company to be
held on 28™day of October, 2022 and at any adjournment thereof.

Signed this

WITNESSES
1. Signature

Signature on

Name Rs. 5/-
Address

Revenue stamp

NIC or
Passport No.

(Signature should agree with the
2. Signature specimen signature registered with
the Company

Name
Address

NIC or
Passport No.

Note:
1. A member entitled to be present and vote at the Meeting may appoint a proxy to attend and vote for him /
her. A proxy need be a member of the Company.
2. Proxies in order to be effective must be received at the Registered Office of the Company not less than 48
hours before the meeting.

3. CDC Shareholders and there Proxies must each attach an attested photocopy of there
National Identity Card of Passport with this proxy form.
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17-G, Gulberg-2, G/Postmall Box-3529, Lahore-54660
Phones #: 92-42-35756953-54
Works: 19-Kilometer, Shahrah-e-Pakistan, Kala Shah Kaku,
District Sheikhupura.




